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2 Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited
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4 Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

CORPORATE INFORMATION
AR
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
e

Below is the structure chart of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries (the Group) as at 31 March 2015:

UTFB/RREXBRAS (A28 ) REMBEAS( A5H )R _FT—AF=A=1+t—HZREE:

South Hong Investment Limited Tianda Group Limited (Tianda Group) Public Shareholders
HEmEREARLAA AREEBERRR(RAAEE) N &

11.5% 63.5% 25.0%

\\ XKXEZRRAT
TIANDA PHARMAGEUTICALS LIMITED

(Stock code: 00455)
(B 1R 5% © 00455)

100% 100%
[ Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited J [Y“”Z; ioihf@gz;gg; % %TltedJ
100% 100% 100%
Tianda Pharmaceuticals Ti Biotech Limi Tianda Pharmaceuticals
(Australia) Pty Ltd Ia%& gﬁé % ﬁ'%}'ted (Hong Kong) Limited
KA B A " KA
CRAFIZ)BRAF * ar (BB ERAT
100%
Tianda Pharmaceuticals
(China) Ltd *
RARGEZE
(FFE)BRAT]
49% 51% 55%

Tianda Pharmaceuticals

. . Yunnan Meng Sheng
(Z%u;s%;% Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd.*
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6 Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AT

RESULTS
Year ended 31 March
BHE=B=1T—HULFE
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
F——F T%F-IF Z¥-=fF ZZ-NF ZFThHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FETT FETT FETT FETT FHEIT
Revenue PN 206,346 397,233 281,995 247173 139,367
Profit (loss) before tax RIS HE A
(B18) 120,155 102,702 83,359 64,426 (24,261)
Income tax (expenses) credit AT/ ( SZH )
A (18,718) (23,172) (15,663) (15,477) 1,245
Profit (loss) for the year REEEF)
(B1E) 101,437 79,530 67,696 48,949 (23,016)
Profit (loss) attributable to: 3z &) ( 518 )
BRI
Owners of the Company ~ ANASIPRE 67,427 43,096 37,740 22,049 (17,942)
Non-controlling interests JE= R ER 34,010 36,434 29,956 26,900 (5,074)
101,437 79,530 67,696 48,949 (23,016)
HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cent
il ALl AL il Bl
Basic earnings (loss) SREARRT
per share (B1E) 4.34 230 2.02 1.18 (0.96)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BEENGE
At 31 March
R=B=+—H
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—F—F ZF-F T=F F-NF ZZFhLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FETT FHEIT FHEIT FHEIT Tt
Total assets nEE 1,000,204 1,007,845 917,757 932,490 921,017
Total liabilities e (152,867) (137,899) (142,557) (117,429) (132,609)
847,337 869,946 775,200 815,061 788,408
Equity attributable to owners #7587 B HS
of the Company ¥ N/NET) S 676,296 702,958 737,995 751,146 729,344
Non-controlling interests ER RS 171,041 166,988 37,205 63,915 59,064
847,337 869,946 775,200 815,061 788,408
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AT EE

REVENUE (CONTINUING) Lz A ( 12 48 4% 4 £ 7% ) BASIC EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 45 g EL7&
HK$'000 5% 7 HK CENTS 11l BRI (E5E)
2015 2015

. CONTINUING . DISCONTINUED
PR ST B SRR
PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE 252 &5 EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS 723 B iR &
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY  JE {5 525%! (f8518) OF THE COMPANY PEfL R
HK$'000 T35 7T HK$'000 F/& 7T
201 2014
2013 2013

u Ordinary profit attributable to owners of the Company (Continuing)
RN EE S BN (FFEELE5%)

u Ordinary profit attributable to owners of the Company (Discontinued)
AR BIRR G EBEN (BRI EER)

] One-off items
—RIEHR

Note:  One off items included gain on disposal of subsidiaries, gain/loss on exploration and evaluation assets and/or loss on plant and machinery written off.
it —XMIBEEAELENBAS G BRRHEEEZWE FIER SRS Rk s E.



8 Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

E5E

Mr. Fang Wen Quan, aged 46, was appointed as an executive
Director in 2003. He is the Chairman, Managing Director, the chairman of the
nomination committee and a member of the remuneration committee and the
risk management committee of the Company, and a director of the Group’s
certain subsidiaries. Mr. Fang is the founder, chairman and beneficial owner
of Tianda Group, the controlling shareholder of the Company, possessing
ample experience in corporate strategy and management. He studied
International Relations in the University of Sydney and Tsinghua University,
and established a non-profit strategic studies think tank called “Tianda
Institute”. Upholding the morality of “Caring for a Better World”, Mr. Fang
always shows his greater commitment to community services, including
donations to the poverties, education and training, healthcare, scientific
research and environmental protection, culture and arts.

Mr. Shi Shaobin, aged 47 was appointed as an executive Director
in 13 March 2015. He received his bachelor degree in biochemistry from
Sun Yat-sen University and master degree in business administration and
doctoral degree in enterprise management from Sun Yat-sen Business
School. He also holds the senior engineer qualification. He has worked as
director and senior management in several large organizations in the PRC
and Hong Kong, and possesses extensive experience in management,
marketing and governance in pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Shi worked for
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Company Limited (now known as Guangzhou
Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings Company Limited), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 874 and 600332 respectively) as a general
manager which his resignation was on 9 May 2010 and as an executive
director which his resignation was on 18 June 2012. Mr. Shi also served
as chairman in Guangzhou Pearl River Piano Group Co., Ltd, a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002678) which his
resignation was on 22 March 2014. Mr. Shi currently acts as the chairman
of BEMBFAF4I (Guangzhou Electronic Commerce Network®). He
also serves in numerous public bodies including representative of the
Twelfth of Guangdong Provincial People’s Congress, executive director of
FEER & hE2 B3 = (Guangdong Province Traditional Chinese Medicine
Association*), director of Chinese Medical Association and vice president of
ERESFELESREME (Guangdong Province Young Entrepreneurs’
Association®).

* For identification purpose only
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"+ HEHME BEERRSENEFEHHRE
BER ARTHEZELEAE, GFE
REFT_EARARKEAR BEREH
BEERTEHIES TERETEENER
EEFEEERMERIER.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESEE

Mr. Liu Huijiang, aged 59, was appointed as an executive Director in
2006. He is a senior engineer, graduated from College of Water Resources
and Hydroelectric Engineering (now Wuhan University). Mr. Liu held the
posts of design department head, assistant factory manager and factory
manager of Yuxi Hydropower Supplies Factory from 1976 to 1993. He had
been a deputy general manager of Yunnan Hongta Group Company Limited,
the director of SDIC Yunnan Dachaoshan Hydropower Company Limited,
Yunnan Huaneng Lancang River Hydropower Company Limited, Hongta
Financial Investment Company Limited and Kunming Pharmaceutical
Corporation.

Mr. Lui Man Sang, aged 51, was appointed as an executive Director
in 2013. Mr. Lui joined Tianda Group, the controlling shareholder of the
Company in 2007 and is a deputy general manager of Tianda Group. He
is responsible for the financial issues of Tianda Group and the Company.
Mr. Lui possesses enriched financial management experience covering
a variety of industries including auditing in one of the big four accounting
firms in Hong Kong and overseeing the finance department of a Hong Kong
listed company. He holds an Executive MBA granted by City University of
Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Lam Yat Fai, aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of the remuneration committee and a member
of audit committee of the Company in 2004. On 26 November 2013, he
was appointed as the chairman of the audit committee. He was appointed
as a member of nomination committee and risk management committee on
22 July 2009. He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising). He is also a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Lam worked with Kwan Wong Tan & Fong and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
for over 10 years. Mr. Lam has over 25 years of experience in auditing,
taxation, corporate finance and accounting. Mr. Lam is an independent non-
executive director of Oriental Press Group Limited, which is listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Hong Kong Stock
Exchange).
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10 Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

E5HE

Mr. Chiu Sung Hong, aged 68, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the audit committee of the Company
with effect from 10 April 2008. Mr. Chiu ceased to act as the chairman
of the audit committee and remained as a member of the committee
on 26 November 2013. Mr. Chiu was appointed as the chairman of risk
management committee on 22 July 2009. On 1 April 2012, he was appointed
as the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the
nomination committee. He received an LL.B. degree from the University of
Sydney. He is admitted as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of New South
Wales and the High Court of Australia. He has over 30 years of experience
in legal practice. Mr. Chiu is the founding member of the Board of Trustees
of the Australian Nursing Home Foundation and served as the General
Secretary of Australian Chinese Community Association of New South
Wales. Mr. Chiu is an independent non-executive director of the CNOOC
Limited, which is listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and Bank of China (Australia) Limited.

Mr. Chiu Fan Wa, aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of the remuneration committee and audit
committee of the Company on 31 March 2009. Mr. Chiu is a founder and
the managing director of Chiu, Choy & Chung C.P.A. Limited, and a partner
of F. S. Li & Co,. He graduated from City University of Hong Kong and
obtained a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree with major in accountancy in
1992 and was awarded a Master of Professional Accounting from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 2002. He is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) in Hong Kong, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, an Associate Member of the Institute of the
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, a member of The Society of
Chinese Accountants & Auditors, an associate of The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and an associate of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, United Kingdom, a fellow member of The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a Certified Tax Advisor. Mr. Chiu is also
an independent non-executive director of Kenford Group Holdings Limited,
which is listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN
EEREE

For the financial year ended 31 March 2015 (Current Financial
Year), the Group adopted “Innovation” as its annual management keynote
with extensive training to uplift the workforce’s awareness and capabilities
for new ideas. The standards of innovation-based management are thus
practically enhanced. Altogether, this provides a stronger force for the
Group’s development.

Since Yunnan Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (Meng Sheng
Pharmaceutical), a subsidiary of the Company, took longer than expected
time to complete the construction for expansion and upgrade work in line
with the new GMP standards in the Current Financial Year, the delay had
direct impact upon its sales and profit. As a result, a loss attributable to
shareholders of HK$17.9 million was recorded for the Current Financial
Year. With the completion of the construction and the award of the new GMP
certificate in January 2015, the production and the sales of Meng Sheng
Pharmaceutical have gradually recovered and will be a major contributor
of earnings to the Group. We strongly believe that there will be substantial
growth in the Group's earnings for the next financial year.

With the deeper reform of China’s healthcare system, there comes a
consolidation of the pharmaceutical industry with price adjustments of the
drugs and medicines. It brings an invaluable opportunity to the Group which
seizes this chance and meets the challenges. Professional management
is strengthened upon innovations and through internal growth and external
development, we will sooner realise our stated mid-term objective of “Ten
Billion with Centennial Growth” (Revenue of over HK$10 billion dollars
and established as an evergreen enterprise) proposed during the Current
Financial Year.
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REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN
EEREE

Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) Ltd
(Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai))

The Zhuhai-based company is the R&D and production base of the
Group. Through innovation, it fine-tuned its strategies in R&D and devoted
more resources with more R&D product pipeline. The Group's project on
Acarbose, an oral drug for lowering glucose, makes its milestone with all the
pre-clinical researches completed. The project on Calcium Supplements,
the Group’s new product, has commenced its R&D phase as the Group’s
priority. At the same time, the company has leveraged on its successful cost
reduction of production. Assigning quality with the top priority, the company
was awarded GMP certification with the longest validation term of 3 years by
the Therapeutic Goods Administration (TGA) in Australia as well as the New
GMP Version certification in China for a term of 5 years during the Current
Financial Year.

To meet the market demands, the company will continue to expand its
product base and to drive the projects for new products like Acarbose Tablets
and Montelukast Sodium Chewable Tablets — a kind of antiasthmatic drugs
to the market. In addition, the company has acquired a plot of land in Dingjia
Bay pharmaceutical industry park, Sanzao Town, Jinwan District, Zhuhai City
for R&D and production facilities, and the project progresses well ahead,
thus laying the solid foundation for the mid-term objective of achieving “Ten
Billion with Centennial Growth”.
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REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN
EEREE

Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical

The company is the R&D and production base of the Group in
Kunming City of Yunnan Province. The company has invested over RMB50
million in an expansion and rebuild work of a new plant which is equipped
with state-of-the-art lyophilized production lines in compliance with the
New GMP standards of China. This project will increase the production
capacity of the company by fifty per cent. and the production and the
sales of the flagship product, Cerebroprotein Hydrolysate Injection, and a
product with market potential, Aceglutamide for Injection, were resumed
in February 2015. Through upgrading the skills of its production workforce
and the seamlessly smoother operation of the facilities with the superior
technicality of the production, the company will strive to attain the designed
capacity in near term and satisfy the sales demand from the domestic and
overseas markets. The company will also continue to improve its quality and
production controls, thus reducing the costs of quality control and production
s0 as to raise its operating profit.

[zl Report 2015 R
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To further strengthen its R&D, the company has already commenced
the research project on a new category 6 lyophilized injection powder
product. The possibility of upgrading the standards for Cerebroprotein
Hydrolysate Small-Dosage Injection will also be studied. Meanwhile,
the company will also actively identify good products and projects for
cooperation and mergers and acquisitions opportunities so as to enrich its
product base and increase the momentum for business growth.
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REMEBKBY NS EE5RIREET
5. RFEEBEIZRTFEmR. F1EE,
BEGFRFHE SEATEMR, BEBAT
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REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN
EEREE

Tianda Pharmaceuticals (China) Ltd
(Tianda Pharmaceuticals (China))

Based in Shenzhen, the company is the sales center for mainland
China market. It is primarily responsible for sales work of the Group’s
products in mainland China. From the Current Financial Year, the company
launched a sales contractor mode of cooperation in nine key provinces and
regions, expanding the OTC sales channel and flexibly managing risks in
the relevant tendering process, thereby effectively expanding the market
of its products. Through improving and standardising internal management
processes, speeding up the optimisation and reform of the sales teams, and
exploring new sales channels in the end-markets, the company registered
promising sales momentum and lays the solid foundation for future growth.

After the resumption of
the production of Cerebroprotein
Hydrolysate Injection, the Group’s
flagship product, in 2015, the sales
for the first quarter rocketed, and
the sales to hospitals is expected
to fully resume in the next financial
year. The company will endeavour
to surpass the historic peak in
sales prior to the suspension of
production. On the other side, the company has also applied for an increase
adjustment in the maximum daily dosage of Cerebroprotein Hydrolysate
Injections, which is expected to have a positive effect on its clinical
effectiveness and sales.

Looking forward, the government will implement policies to support
paediatrics drugs and impose tender regulations that favour proprietary
products and exclusive specifications. The company will tap into the
brilliant opportunities therefrom and increase the success rate of its existing
products in tenders across the country. Greater efforts will be spent in brand
building so as to establish two
core brands for Tuoen Ibuprofen
series and Tuoping Valsartan
Capsule in two or three years.
The company will also capitalise
on the abolishment of government
pricing policy for most of the drugs,
and adjust the retail prices of its
products so as to take more OTC

Tuoen Ibuprofen Series G\ 7i ¥% 25 & 51
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market share in the next two to three years. Meanwhile, the sales team
will be more proactive in collaboration with the agents in other countries in
developing overseas markets of Cerebroprotein Hydrolysate Injections by
promotions to overseas doctor. A versatile model of sales comprising both
online and offline channels will be established to promote the sales of quality
foreign healthcare products such as Super Manuka honey from Australia, in
mainland China.

Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia) Pty Ltd
(Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia))

Based in Sydney in Australia, the
company is established as the sales and
marketing center for the South Pacific region.
It is primarily responsible for the sale of the
Group’s products in markets like Australia and
other South Pacific Region countries. It also
focuses on the healthcare product business.
Concluding from the experience in sales
efforts over the past year, the company fine-
tuned its brand and sales strategies to focus
on establishing a core brand, Herb Valley,
and develops and promotes healthcare product series under this brand so as
to broaden its categories and quantities. Extra sales efforts will also be spent in
different market segments. The company will continue to develop e-commerce
platform in order to offer personalised sales and services, and will actively identify
and introduce quality health foods from the region to meet the huge market
demand in the Greater China, thus contributing to the Group’s development.

SUPER MANUKA

500g .li :

Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Hong Kong) Limited
(Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Hong Kong))

Based in Hong Kong, the company is the international sales and
marketing centre. It co-ordinates the brand building and marketing activities,
and responsible for the sales work in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and
other overseas markets. In May 2014, the company acquired the sole
distributorship of Berringa, a well-known manufacturer of honey products
in Australia, for the Asia Pacific Region. Subsequently, a series of natural
honey healthcare products of Super Manuka under Herb Valley brand
was launched and marketed as flagship products. Zhikang Granules,
a proprietary product, has been registered as a Chinese medicine by
Department of Health of Hong Kong and enjoys promising prospects. The
other flagship product, Cerebroprotein Hydrolysate Injection, will be further
promoted in the international markets. The company will soon launch an
online purchase platform with a view to satisfying the practical needs of the
customers and further promoting the brand awareness.

S
Ve
SUPER MANUKA
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The company will continue to build
its brand of Internet shopping offering high

quality healthcare products. It will expand its |
product portfolio and broaden its marketing Oral Suspension

Pain & Fever Relief

channels, combining 020 model and extending
its coverage to healthcare chain stores at
appropriate timing. Looking forward, the
company is confident to create a new outlook
for its brands, sales and marketing with its
innovations and professionalism.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The board of Directors (the Board) does not recommend the payment
of any final dividend for the financial year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: final
dividend of HK0.24 cent per share).

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my heartful gratitude to
each and every customer, business partner, staff and shareholder for all their
support and trust in the Group. Let us join forces and together create better
performance!

Fang Wen Quan
Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 June 2015
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Yunnan Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (Meng Sheng
Pharmaceutical), a subsidiary of the Company, has obtained the New
GMP certificate and resumed production in January 2015. However, as
Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical suspended its production for a substantial
portion of the financial year ended 31 March 2015 (FYE2015 or the Current
Financial Year), the sales performance of its major products, Cerebroprotein
Hydrolysate Injection was affected. Therefore, the Group’s revenue and
operating results recorded a notable drop as compared to the financial year
ended 31 March 2014 (FYE2014 or the Last Financial Year).

In FYE2015, the consolidated revenue of the Group amounted to
HK$139.4 million, representing a decrease of 43.6% as compared with
HK$247.2 million in FYE2014. Gross profit of the Group dropped from
HK$158.5 million in the Last Financial Year to HK$69.8 million in the Current
Financial Year, representing a drop of 56.0%. As the contribution from
Cerebroprotein Hydralysate Injection, a product with high gross profit margin,
reduced, overall gross profit margin decreased from 64.1% in the Last
Financial Year to 50.1% in the Current Financial Year.

Distribution and selling expenses decreased by approximately HK$2.4
million from HK$46.1 million in FYE2014 to HK$43.7 million in FYE2015.
Despite the decrease in sales revenue and the corresponding drop in
distribution and selling expenses of Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical, it still
could not offset the increase in distribution and selling expenses of Tianda
Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) Ltd (Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai)), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as a result of its enhanced sales effort.

Administrative expenses increased from HK$53.0 million in FYE2014
to HK$59.4 million in the Current Financial Year. The major reason was that
Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical recorded certain indirect manufacturing costs
as administrative expenses during the period of production suspension.
Hence, it led to increment in administrative expenses for Meng Sheng
Pharmaceutical from HK$11.5 million in FYE2014 to HK$18.1 million in
FYE2015.
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Other income mainly comprises government grants, bank interest
income and investment income. Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical is a leader
in the production techniques of Cerebroprotein Hydrolysate Injection and it
received a government grant of HK$1.4 million in support of its research and
development. In addition, Meng Sheng also received government subsidy
of HK$1.3 million for factory expansions and improvements. This subsidy
was recognised as income according to the useful lives of the relevant
fixed assets. For the bank interest and investment incomes, the Group
strengthened its fund management during FYE2015 to seek higher interest
return. Interest and investment incomes increased from HK$8.2 million in
FYE2014 to HK$10.6 million in FYE2015.

Overall, as affected by the suspension of the original production
facility of Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical, a loss attributable to shareholders
of the Company amounted to HK$17.9 million was recorded for the Current
Financial Year, representing a loss per share of HK0.96 cent. A profit
attributable to shareholders of the Company amounting to HK$22.0 million,
equivalent to earnings per share of HK1.18 cents, was recorded in the Last
Financial Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group focuses on pharmaceutical, biotechnology and
healthcare product business activities, which are carried out through Tianda
Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai), Tianda Pharmaceuticals (China) Ltd. (Tianda
Pharmaceuticals (China)), Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia) Pty Ltd
(Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia)) and Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Hong
Kong) Limited (Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Hong Kong)) (hereinafter referred
to as the Wholly-owned Subsidiaries) and Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical. The
Group currently owns 55% of equity interest in Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical.
The Wholly-owned Subsidiaries and Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical
contributed to 88.2% and 11.8%, respectively, of the Group’s revenue.
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The Wholly-owned Subsidiaries are principally engaged in research
and development, production and sales of pharmaceutical and healthcare
products in China, Hong Kong and Australia. During the Current Financial
Year, the revenue of the Wholly-owned Subsidiaries increased by 15.7%
from HK$106.2 million for the Last Financial Year to HK$122.9 million.
Gross profit increased by 33.7% compared to the Last Financial Year.
Gross profit margin increased from 43.1% for the Last Financial Year to
49.8% for the Current Financial Year. This was mainly due to the lowering
of production and operating costs, since Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai)'s
succeeded in adjusting its marketing strategies and models based on
innovative management. The steadily improved performance of Tianda
Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) illustrates that the company is now on the right
track of development.

For the Current Financial Year, revenue of Meng Sheng
Pharmaceutical was HK$16.4 million, representing a decrease of 88.4%
from HK$141 million for the Last Financial Year. Gross profit margin declined
from 79.9% for the Last Financial Year to 52.1%. The drop in revenue is
primarily due to the longer than expected time to complete the expansion
and improvement work for the key production facilities in accordance with the
new GMP certification in the Current Financial Year and both the sales and
earnings were affected. As a result, a net loss of HK$11.3 million, compared
with a net profit of HK$59.8 million for the Last Financial Year, was recorded
for the Current Financial Year. As Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical retained its
production staff during the suspension of production, it was able to maintain
the integrity of the technical team and was well-prepared for the resumption
of normal production. Soon after the completion of the expansion and
improvement work for its new production base and the award of the new
GMP certificate, Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical resumed its production and
sales in early February 2015, and it is expected that the sales for the next
financial year will exhibit strong growth.
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In terms of sales revenue and gross profit margin of the key products,
Tuoping Valsartan Capsules and Tuoen Ibuprofen Suspension and Drops
accounted for approximately 73.1% of the revenue of the Wholly-owned
Subsidiaries for the Current Financial Year, and their gross profit margins
recorded a growth in comparison with the Last Financial Year. Such figures
demonstrated competitive advantages of the Wholly-owned Subsidiaries’
key products, as well as high market recognition of these quality products.
Tianda Pharmaceuticals (China) will continue its market expansion
leveraging on its teams of market professionals and distribution network
across major provinces and cities in China. It will further enhance its sales
management with an aim to enhance sales efficiency and profit, thus
achieving better results in the next financial year.

Net profit of the Wholly-owned Subsidiaries for the Current Financial
Year decreased by HK$8.7 million in comparison with the Last Financial
Year. It was mainly due to the operating losses of approximately HK$7.3
million from its Australian business and HK$2.7 million from its Hong Kong
business. For market development, Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia) has
enhanced its market expansion efforts by focusing on healthcare products
and adapting its brand and sales strategies. Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Hong
Kong) will develop new distribution channels and enhance the service to
end-customers. It will also broaden its product range and launch an online
shopping platform in due course for promoting Herb Valley and other
branded quality healthcare products including Super Manuka series of
natural honey products in Greater China with tremendous market potential.
It is expected that such adjustments in marketing strategies and market
developments will lay a solid foundation for enhancing results, profit and
cash flow of the Wholly-owned Subsidiaries. The Wholly-owned Subsidiaries
will continue to consolidate and acquire quality healthcare products all over
the world to meet the demands from different market segments, and explore
the possibility of establishing healthcare chain stores to develop an online-to-
offline (020) sales model.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s liquidity remained healthy. As at 31 March 2015, the
Group had cash and bank balances of approximately HK$384.2 million (31
March 2014: HK$427.3 million), of which approximately 2.4% and 97.1%
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi respectively with
remaining in Australian dollars, Euros and United States dollars. The Group
has no external borrowing as at 31 March 2015. Therefore, the Group has
sufficient financial resources to meet its obligations and daily operational
needs.

EXCHANGE RATE EXPOSURE

The Group's assets, liabilities and transactions are substantially
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, United States dollars and
Australian dollars.

The Group has sales and investments in foreign operations which use
currencies other than its functional currency Renminbi. As such, the Group
has some exposures to foreign currency risk. The management from time to
time determines suitable measures, such as entering into forward currency
contracts, to lessen exposure to exchange rate fluctuations in material
transactions denominated in currencies other than Renminbi. The Group did
not enter into any forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency
risks as at 31 March 2015.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

The Group did not have any charge on assets as at 31 March 2015
and 31 March 2014.

EMPLOYEES

The Group employed approximately 450 employees in Hong Kong,
China and Australia as at 31 March 2015. The Group remunerates its
employees based on market terms and the qualifications and experiences of
the employees concerned.
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The Company is firmly committed to maintaining statutory and
regulatory standards and adhering to the principles of corporate governance,
emphasizing transparency and accountability to the shareholders.

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the CG Code) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the Listing Rules)
during the year ended 31 March 2015 except as mentioned below.

Mr. Fang Wen Quan is the Chairman and the Managing Director
of the Company. Pursuant to paragraph A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer of an issuer should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive officer should
be clearly established and set out in writing. Having considered the current
business operation and the size of the Group, the Board is of the view that
Mr. Fang Wen Quan acting as both the Chairman of the Board and as the
Managing Director of the Company is acceptable and in the best interest of
the Group. The Board will review this situation periodically.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the businesses, strategic development, financial
performance and corporate governance of the Group. The management
is delegated with the powers and authorities for overseeing the day-to-day
operation of the Group.

The Board currently consists of 7 Directors, comprising 4 executive
Directors and 3 independent non-executive Directors (INEDs) namely:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Fang Wen Quan
(Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. Shi Shaobin
(Appointed on 13 March 2015)
Mr. Liu Huijiang
Mr. Lui Man Sang

R AR N AR K,
WETFEEERZIRE, BHAEREROR
%F‘:ﬁ%o

BE_F-AF=R=1t—HILHFE,
ARBEBTFTESBHRXIES LHRE
( ERAN g+ ST EERTAZ
STRMESE, TPk Z 1B RSt

DX EEERRARBTVZESZRARES
B RBEEERTRA21ER, BEITA
ERRATHRZH BRI AEBERE—
ANTHEAE TUAEEBEREEF R TEE
HBEBZRE, CEEBAEEHRBZEF
NIRE, BEFER R/ ETERBFLEES
NBZEERNESFREEDY FEZIFT
BAREEZHENDS. EFEHTERRTE
RSP

5=

I8

EFXTEEEERIHAAT, WER
REBEZER RBER MBRERESR
gin. EEEERFENEREURRA
EEZHEEMF

SFERMCtEEFEMN, BENEH
TESFR=Z2BYIFPTES, BN

HiTES:
X%

( EFRFEFIIIEIE )
e 3k S5 4

(R-EFE—AF=F+=HEZ(F)
Bl=iELE
BXEgkE



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEEaHE

INEDs:

Mr. Lam Yat Fai

Mr. Chiu Sung Hong
Mr. Chiu Fan Wa

The Board believes that the balance between executive Directors and
INEDs is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient balances that protect
the interest of the shareholders and the Group.

INEDs are appointed for a term of 2 years and are subject to
retirement in accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

More than one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualification
in accounting or related financial management expertise. Save as disclosed
in the biographical details of each Director, there is no other relationship
(including financial, business, family, or other material/relevant relationship)
among members of the Board.

The articles of association of the Company provide that one-third of
all the directors shall retire from office by rotation at each Annual General
Meeting (AGM), and the INEDs are subject to this provision. The Company
has received annual confirmation of independence from the three INEDs in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board has established a formal schedule of matters specifically
reserves to the Board for its decision. The Board reviews this schedule on
a periodic basis to ensure that it remains appropriate to the needs of the
Board.

The Board has established procedure to enable directors, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances to enable them to discharge their duties at the Company’s
expenses. The articles of association of the Company contain description
of responsibility and operation procedures of the Board. The Board meets
regularly to review the financial and operating performance of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties including the following matters attended by the Board during the year
ended 31 March 2015:

. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

. review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

. review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

Continuous professional development and training

Directors of the Company are continually updated with legal and
regulatory developments, and the business environment to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities.

All Directors are also provided with monthly updates on the
Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Directors’ training

Continuing education and information are provided to the Directors
regularly to help ensuring that the Directors are apprised of the latest
changes and development in the commercial, legal and regulatory
environment in which the Group conducts its businesses.
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Based on the training records provided to the Company by the
Directors, all the Directors have participated in the trainings by reading
newspapers, journals and updates and/or attending seminars relating to
economy general business or director's duties and responsibilities, etc.
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during the year ended 31 March 2015.

Directors’ meeting

During the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the Board held 4 full
board meetings. The attendances of the Directors at the meetings are as
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follows: EHFEEZBRAT.
Number of
Attendance
Directors ] IR E
Executive Directors: BiTES:
Mr. Fang Wen Quan (Chairman and Managing Director) PSS ( EFRFEFFELE) 3
Mr. Shi Shaobin i e
(Appointed on 13 March 2015) (R —E—AF=A+=HEZT) 1
Mr. Liu Huijiang 2 gEsaE 3
Mr. Lui Man Sang BNXERE 4
INEDs: B AFITES
Mr. Lam Yat Fai MBESRE 4
Mr. Chiu Sung Hong HERSEE 4
Mr. Chiu Fan Wa N ELE 2

The Board has also established the audit committee, nomination
committee, remuneration committee and risk management committee which
comprises a majority of INEDs. Each of these committees has its own terms
of reference to set out its specific duties and authorities and reports to the
Board. For the terms of reference of each committee, please visit the website
of our Company www.tiandapharma.com.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company was established
with specific written terms of reference. It comprises three INEDs of the
Company, Mr. Chiu Sung Hong, Mr. Lam Yat Fai and Mr. Chiu Fan Wa and
one executive Director of the Company, Mr. Fang Wen Quan. Mr. Chiu Sung
Hong is the Chairman of the remuneration committee during the year.

The remuneration committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on, among other things, the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration to all Directors and senior
management of the Company and is delegated by the Board the
responsibility to determine on behalf of the Board the specific remuneration
packages for all executive Directors and senior management of the
Company.

The remuneration committee held 2 meetings during the year to
review and make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors, the INEDs and senior
management; and to review the bonus to senior management.
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Mr. Chiu Sung Hong (Chairman) WEREBLE(EE) 2

Mr. Fang Wen Quan T3 N HESRAE 1

Mr. Lam Yat Fai N =p b 2

Mr. Chiu Fan Wa == e 1
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Particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules are set out in notes 11(a) & (b) to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established nomination committee comprising two
INEDs, Mr. Lam Yat Fai and Mr. Chiu Sung Hong and one executive Director
of the Company, Mr. Fang Wen Quan (who is the chairman of the nomination
committee).

The duties of the nomination committee are reviewing and supervising
the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying qualified
individuals to become members of the Board, assessing the independence
of the INEDs and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors.

On 13 March 2015, Mr. Shi Shaobin was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company. In considering the above new appointment of
Director, the nomination committee assessed the candidate and incumbent
on criteria such as integrity, independent mindedness, experience, skill and
ability to commit time and effort to carry out their duties and responsibilities
effectively, etc. and made recommendation to the Board for approval.

During the year, the nomination committee held 2 meetings. Details of
individual attendance of its members are as follows:
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Mr. Fang Wen Quan (Chairman) NS E( ) 2
Mr. Lam Yat Fai MBEEEE 2
Mr. Chiu Sung Hong HERLE 2

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the nomination committee had
also reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board, assessed the
independence of the INEDs and made recommendation to the Board on re-
election of retiring Directors.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has formulated the board diversity policy in 24 June
2013 aiming at setting out the approach on diversity of the Board of the
Company.

The Board recognizes the importance of having a diverse board in
enhancing the Board effectiveness and corporate governance. A diverse
board will include and make good use of difference in the skills, industry
knowledge and experience, education, background and other qualities, etc.
of Directors and does not discriminate on the ground of race, age gender or
religious belief. These differences will be taken into account in determining
the optimum composition of the Board and when possible should be
balanced appropriately.

The nomination committee is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of,
individuals nominated for directorships with regards to their qualifications,
skills, experience and knowledge, assess the independence of INEDs, and
make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors in particular
the chairman and the chief executive officer.

The nomination committee is also responsible for reviewing and
reporting to the board diversity.

Board appointments will be based on merit and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.
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At present, the nomination committee has not set any measurable
objectives to implement the board diversity policy. However, it will consider
and review the board diversity policy and setting of any measurable
objectives from time to time.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three INEDs of the Company, being,
Mr. Lam Yat Fai, Mr. Chiu Sung Hong and Mr. Chiu Fan Wa. Mr. Lam Yat Fai
was the chairman of the audit committee during the year.

The role and function of the audit committee include the followings:

. review of and monitor the external auditor's independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard;

. review of the annual and interim financial statements prior
to their approval by the Board, and recommend application
of accounting policies and changes to the financial reporting
requirements; and

. review of the Company’s financial controls, internal controls
and risk management systems to ensure that management has
discharged its duty to have an effective internal control system.

During the year, the audit committee held 2 meetings. Details of
individual attendance of its members are as follows:
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The work performed by the audit committee during the year under
review, includes the followings:

. review the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2014 and for the six months ended 30 September 2014;

. consider and approve of the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor; and

. review the internal control and financial reporting matters of the
Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Company has established risk management committee
comprising two INEDs of the Company, Mr. Chiu Sung Hong (chairman
of risk management committee) and Mr. Lam Yat Fai and one executive
Director of the Company, Mr. Fang Wen Quan.

The role and function of the risk management committee include the

followings:
. enhance and strengthen the system of risk management of the
Group and provide comments and recommendations thereon to

the Board;

. identify the risks of the Group and provide recommendations to
the Board; and

. other matters authorized by the Board.

During the year, the risk management committee held 1 meeting.
Details of individual attendance of its members are as follows:
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the Model Code) of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors of
the Company, they all confirm that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2015.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The fees in relation to the audit and other services, including
reviewing interim results and taxation services for the year provided by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditor of the Company, amounted to
HK$1,200,000 and HK$229,900 respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARING THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company acknowledge that it is their
responsibilities for preparing the financial statements. The Directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with relevant regulations and applicable accounting
principles. The Directors of the Company are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
statement of the auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 45 to 46.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective system
of internal control so as to ensure the shareholders’ investment and the
Company’s assets are properly safeguarded. The system of internal control
is designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve corporate objectives
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement, loss or fraud. In addition, the Board has reviewed
the effectiveness of the internal control system through the audit committee
and the internal audit team of the Company. The Board has also reviewed
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged and appointed Mr. Lo Tai On, a
representative from an external secretarial services provider, as the
company secretary of the Company. The primary contact person with the
company secretary of the Company is Mr. Ho Wai Chi, finance manager,
Mr. Lo has confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
training.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2015, there was no change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company so that they can
exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company employs a range of communication tools to ensure
its shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives. These
include general meetings, interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars. Procedure for voting by poll had been read out at the general
meetings. All votes of the shareholders were taken by poll. The Company
announced results of the poll in the manner prescribed under the Listing
Rules.
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The AGM of the Company was held on 28 August 2014, a notice
convening the AGM contained in the circular dated 31 July 2014 was
dispatched to the shareholders together with the 2014 annual report. A
separate resolution was proposed by the chairman of the meeting in respect
of each separate issue, including re-election of Directors. Mr. Fang Wen
Quan, the Chairman and Managing Director and the executive Director
Mr. Lui Man Sang and two INEDs. Mr. Lam Yat Fai and Mr. Chiu Fan Wa
attended the AGM to answer questions raised from shareholders. Mr. Liu
Huijiang, an executive Director of the Company and Mr. Chiu Sung Hong,
an INED of the Company were unable to attend the 2014 AGM due to their
other business commitment. No other general meeting was held during the
year.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group fully recognizes the importance of employing a
professional, truthful and proactive attitude in promoting investor relations.
This underscores the Group's persistence in maintaining optimum all-
round communications with investors, allowing it to collect information and
valuable feedbacks from investors and announce its business strategy and
direction in due course. These efforts are critical for the Group to improve its
corporate governance and strengthen investor confidence.

Ensuring high corporate transparency is a key emphasis in the
Group's investor relations activities. During the year under review, the Group
promoted investor relations through different channels. Regular meetings are
held between the management and investors. Latest information regarding
the Group and its business is proactively disclosed to investors so that the
best investment decisions can be made. Whenever announcements on
annual results, interim results and material transactions are made, the Group
will capitalize such opportunities to enhance communications with investors,
explaining to them the Group’s latest operational situations and direction of
development.

The Company also maintains a website at www.tiandapharma.com,
where updates on the Company’s business developments and operations,
financial information and news can always be found.
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Shareholders and investors may at any time send their enquiries and

concerns to the Board in writing through Investor Relations & Corporate
Communications Department whose contact details are as follows:

Address: Suites 2405-2410, 24th Floor, CITIC Tower,

Fax:
Email:

No. 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong
2541 6558
investor_relations@tianda.com

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for

communication between the shareholders and the Board. The AGM of the
Company shall be held in each year at such place as may be determined
by the Board. All general meetings other than AGM shall be called an
extraordinary general meeting (the EGM). Set out below are procedures
by which shareholders may (1) convene the EGM; (2) put forward enquires
to the Board; and (3) put forward proposals at general meetings. The
procedures are subject to the Company’s articles of association and
applicable legislation and regulations.

(1)

Procedures for shareholders to convene the EGM

Any 2 or more shareholders holding at the date of the deposit
of the requisition in aggregate not less than 25 per cent of such of the
paid up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.

Such requisition must state the objects of the meeting and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the Company’s
principal office in Hong Kong at Suites 2405-2410, 24th Floor, CITIC
Tower, No. 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of such requisition proceed duly to convene the EGM, the
requisitionists themselves may convene the EGM in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be
convened by the Directors, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionists as a result of the failure of the Directors to convene
such a meeting shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.
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(2)

(3)

The notice period to be given to all the registered shareholders
for consideration of the proposal raised by the requisitionist(s)
concerned at the EGM varies according to the nature of the proposal
as set out in the Company’s articles of association and the CG Code.

Procedures to put forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may, at any time, direct enquire to the Board. All
enquiries shall be in writing with the detail contact information of the
requisitionists through the Company’s principal place of business of
Hong Kong at Suites 2405-2410, 24th Floor, CITIC Tower, No. 1 Tim
Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong or email to direct_enquiries@tianda.
com for the attention of the Board.

Procedures to put forward proposals at general meetings

There are no provisions in the Company’s articles of
association or the Cayman Islands Companies Law for shareholders
to put forward new resolution at general meetings other than a
proposal of a person for election as director. Shareholders may follow
the procedures set out above to convene the EGM for any business
specified in such written requisition.

The procedures for shareholder of the Company to propose a
person for election as director is posted on the Company website at
www.tiandapharma.com.

(2)

(3)
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are research and development, production and
sales of pharmaceutical, biotechnology and healthcare products.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to results by
segment for the year ended 31 March 2015 is set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the five largest customers of the
Group accounted for approximately 16.3% of the Group’s total revenue while
the largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 4.4% of the
Group’s total revenue. In addition, for the year ended 31 March 2015, the
five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 34.1% of the
Group’s total purchases while the largest supplier of the Group accounted for
approximately 14.3% of the Group’s total purchases.

During the reporting year, to the knowledge of the Directors, Tianda
Group indirectly hold 60% equity interest in kiBAS 4 S AL EDFS B IR
235] (Zhuhai S.E.Z. Cheng Cheng Printing Company Ltd.) (Cheng Cheng
Printing) which is one of the five major suppliers of the Company.

Except for the above-disclosed, none of the Directors, associates
of Director or Shareholders of the Company (who to the knowledge of the
Directors owes more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any
interest in the Company’s five major suppliers or five major customers during
the year.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 47.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 6 to 7 of this annual
report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity set out on page 50
of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2015, the Company had retained profits available for
cash distribution and/or distribution in specie as computed in accordance
with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands of approximately
HK$104,774,344. Moreover, the share premium account of the Company
may be distributed, provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. As at 31 March 2015, the Company’s share premium account
amounted to HK$257,839,900.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Fang Wen Quan (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. Shi Shaobin
(Appointed on 13 March 2015)
Mr. Liu Huijiang
Mr. Lui Man Sang

INEDs:

Mr. Lam Yat Fai

Mr. Chiu Sung Hong
Mr. Chiu Fan Wa

Mr. Shi Shaobin was appointed as an executive Director on 13
March 2015 and in accordance with Article 91 of the Company’s articles of
association, he will retire and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

In accordance with Article 99 of the Company’s articles of association,
Messrs. Fang Wen Quan, Liu Huijiang and Chiu Fan Wa will retire by
rotation and eligible for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

INEDs are appointed for a term of 2 years and are subject to
retirement in accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has entered into any service agreement with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within 1 year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2015, the interests of the Company’s Directors, chief
executives and their associates in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong) (SFO), were as follows:
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EERKROLBRERD ZES

RIF-—AF=ZRA=+—8, RiE:E
FRIEIED( FEBENBE) (BEFK
HAES IR0 ) SB35 A R B fifF EB 2
%, ARBZEF RSTHRABRKEZ
BBARKTAIREBREEZ kK RIEE
Ry hBEE 2 EmAT:

Shares of the Company ¥ /N[
Number of
Name of Director Capacity shares held %
EEHE S AR DR Bt
Mr. Fang Wen Quan Held by controlled corporation 1,187,594,704 63.50
(Note)
X HExRE ZEREERFE ( Bzt )

Note: Al the above shares are beneficially owned by Tianda Group. Mr. Fang Wen Quan
has 100% equity interests in Tianda Group and, accordingly, is deemed to have a
corporate interest in the above shares owned by Tianda Group and all the interests
stated above represent long positions.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The purpose of a share option scheme (the Scheme) is to enable the
Company to recognize the future and/or past contributions of the participants
(as defined in the Scheme and including any director and employee of
any member of the Group) to the Company, and to attract and retain
such important participants and/or to maintain a continuing relationship,
with participants who have contributed to the result, growth, success and
benefit of the Group, and in relation to administrative staff, to recruit and
retain experienced and talented individuals and/or to reward their past
contributions.

The Scheme is for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption
on 13 July 2010. The directors may, at their discretion, make an offer to
any participant to take up options. An option is deemed to have been
granted and accepted by the grantee upon his or her signing the duplicate
letter comprising acceptance of the option and paying HK$1 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof.
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The subscription price for shares of the Company under the Scheme
shall be no less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the offer date (which date must be a business day); (i) a price
being the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
5 business days immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal
value of a share of the Company on the offer date.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10 per
cent of the total number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
approval of the Scheme. An option may be exercised during a period to be
determined by the directors in its absolute discretion and in any event such
period shall not be longer than 10 years from the date upon which the option
is granted.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each participant under the Scheme in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1 per cent of the total number of shares in issue of
the Company. Any further grant of options in excess of the 1 per cent limit
shall be subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting with such
participant and his or her associates abstaining from voting.

No Share Option has been granted since the adoption of the Scheme
on 13 July 2010.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements,
no contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS'’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save for the Scheme of the Company disclosed above, at no
time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate and none of the directors nor any of
their spouses or children under the age of 18 had any rights to subscribe for
the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights during the
year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 March 2015, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that the
following shareholders had notified the Company of the relevant interests in
5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:
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fm:

Number of
Name of Shareholder Capacity shares held %
Bz
AR BR A 5 S RIDEE Bt
Tianda Group Beneficial owner 1,187,594,704 63.50
(Note 1)
AAREE EmBEEA ( Mfiz1)
Mr. Fang Wen Quan Held by controlled corporation 1,187,594,704 63.50
(Note 1)
T3 XIS REEFE ( Birzz1)
South Hong Investment Limited (South Hong) Beneficial owner 214,992,930 11.50
(Note 2)
BEEMEREBRAE( EB/EIE) EmEEA ( 722 )
Hongta Tobacco (Group) Limited (Hongta) Held by controlled corporation 214,992,930 11.50
(Note 2)
AEEE( £E)BREEAB(AE) 2EEEEFR ( 722 )

Notes:

©) These 1,187,594,704 shares are beneficially owned by Tianda Group. Mr. Fang
Wen Quan has 100% equity interests in Tianda Group and, accordingly, is deemed
to have a corporate interest in the said 1,187,594,704 shares owned by Tianda
Group.

(2) These 214,992,930 shares are beneficially owned by South Hong. South Hong was
beneficially owned as to approximately 96.57% by Hongta. Accordingly, Hongta is
deemed to be interested in the 214,992,930 shares owned by South Hong.
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All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31 March
2015, no short position was recorded in the register kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of
any other interest representing 5% or more in the Company’s issued share
capital as at 31 March 2015.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the INEDs are independent.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions with
connected persons which constituted “continuing connected transactions”
under the Listing Rules. Details of this continuing connected transaction
which is subject to the reporting requirements under Rule 14A.46 of the
Listing Rules are summarized as follows:

PURCHASES OF THE INSTRUCTION LEAFLETS AND PACKAGING
BOXES

On 12 November 2012, a framework agreement was entered into
among Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) and Cheng Cheng Printing for
governing the transactions for purchasing printed instruction leaflets and
packaging boxes from Cheng Cheng Printing and specifying the terms
adopted including the annual purchase caps. Cheng Cheng Printing is a
subsidiary of Tianda Group, the controlling shareholder of the Company, it
is a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. It is also a
connected person of the Company because it is an associate of Hongta,
a substantial shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, this framework
agreement and the transactions contemplated under this agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. This framework agreement was for the three
financial years ended 31 March 2015. Details of the transactions are set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 12 November 2012.
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The annual cap and the actual amount of the above continuing
connected transactions for the year ended 31 March 2015 are shown as
follow:
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The actual

Business Type The annual cap transaction amount
¥rEs FELR ERRZEE
HK$ HK$

BT HIT

Purchases of instruction leaflets and packaging boxes 9,000,000 4,284,342

FRBRPENRBER

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, INEDs have reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that:

1. these transactions were in the Group’s ordinary and usual
course of business;

2. these transactions were entered into on normal commercial
terms; and

3. these transactions were carried out in accordance with
respective agreement terms which were fair and reasonable,
and in the interests of the Company and the shareholders as a
whole.

The Company’s auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu have provided
a letter to the Board confirming that the above continuing connected
transactions:

1. have received the approval of the Board;

2. are in accordance with the pricing policy of the Group;

3. have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing the transactions; and

4, have not exceeded the cap disclosed in previous
announcement(s).
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group is
based on their merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of
the directors are reviewed by the remuneration committee, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics. No director or any of his associates and executive is
involved in dealing his own remuneration.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
March 2015.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 March 2015 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

Fang Wen Quan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
VL R ey

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TIANDA PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tianda
Pharmaceuticals Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the Group) set out on pages 47 to 124, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagements, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2015 and of its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
25 June 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
rEIEmRH R EWER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z —F—AF=H=+—HIFE

2015 2014
NOTES HK$ HK$
PR T BT
Revenue PN 7 139,366,849 247,173,069
Cost of sales tHE A (69,596,419) (88,692,492)
Gross profit EF 69,770,430 158,480,577
Other income HEWA 8(a) 13,288,592 11,413,870
Other gains and losses HeWamkER 8(b) (2,475,031) (4,734,931)
Distribution and selling expenses DHERBER S (43,676,337) (46,094,182)
Administrative expenses ITHZ (59,378,934) (53,011,614)
Research and development costs DEEINTN (1,757,830) (1,627,104)
Interest expenses on bank borrowing wholly BARAFAREEEZIRT
repayable within five years BEZNEXH (32,565) -
(Loss) profit before tax BRIRAT( BB )& (24,261,675) 64,426,616
Income tax credit (expense) FREike( x4 ) 9 1,245,389 (15,477,270)
(Loss) profit for the year REE( BB )& 10 (23,016,286) 48,949,346
Other comprehensive income (expense) ArEEHEeEERRE
for the year ()
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss: OJEEEN 7 B IRm
ZIER:
Exchange difference arising on translation of REBINERFFRIESL
foreign operations ZERER (2,610,844) (1,478,657)
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: \EEN o BEm
ZIER:
Exchange difference arising on translation to MEAEINEWEMESL
presentation currency ZERER 3,462,006 58,449
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year AFEEE ( ST )WESLEEE (22,165,124) 47,529,138
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: AEE( B8 )iamF B ER:
Owners of the Company ZN/NETES (17,941,969) 22,049,566
Non-controlling interests =y e (5,074,317) 26,899,780
(23,016,286) 48,949,346
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year AFEELHE( X H )
attributable to: W R AR B ER B IS
Owners of the Company P N/NET)i 4 (17,314,163) 20,818,406
Non-controlling interests JE= R ER (4,850,961) 26,710,732
(22,165,124) 47,529,138
HK cent HK cents
L Bl
Basic (loss) earnings per share BREX( BB )BA 12 (0.96) 1.18
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ErEMTRRER

At 31 March 2015 RZF—AF=H=1+—H

2015 2014
NOTES HK$ HK$
s BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
Property, plant and equipment M. MBENRME 14 168,057,695 141,227,045
Prepaid lease payments FETHRERIE 15 84,763,880 87,608,473
Goodwill [GES 16 111,615,489 111,618,198
Intangible assets | EE 17 73,039,524 86,161,275
Deposit for acquisition of property, WEBYIZE. WiB MRk fE
plant and equipment ZiEE 1,250,347 2,056,465
438,726,935 428,671,456
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Inventories FE& 18 38,584,028 28,811,783
Trade and bills receivables and other receivables  FEUBRER K fEUL Z 5
KEEREIGK 19 55,274,130 44,588,701
Prepaid lease payments FETHERIE 15 3,165,017 3,153,484
Tax recoverable EIEE s 1,081,837 -
Bank deposits IRITEM 20 225,818,701 252,216,102
Bank balances and cash RITEBKRRES 20 158,366,450 175,048,174
482,290,163 503,818,244
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE
Trade and other payables FEFTERA R EE BT 21 82,754,970 62,641,149
Government grants — current portion BT B0 - BPERER 1 22 126,119 208,534
Amount due to a related company FEfT—REREE N TIENIA 30(a) 1,355,935 1,463,087
Tax payable [EfTiRIa 6,673,647 7,880,164
90,910,671 72,192,934
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEEFE 391,379,492 431,625,310
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 4B ERGHAE 830,106,427 860,296,766
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREEE
Government grants — non-current portion B4R — AERDHAER 22 1,082,524 -
Deferred tax liabiliies EERIBEEE 24 40,615,967 45,235,422
41,698,491 45,235,422
NET ASSETS BEFE 788,407,936 815,061,344
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BTN

At 31 March 2015 RZF—AF=H=1+—H

2015 2014
NOTES HK$ HK$
PR T BT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARR B
Share capital [N 23 187,011,816 187,011,816
Reserves A 542,331,932 564,134,379
Equity attributable to owners of the Company K \__Iﬁx%ﬁﬁ g 729,343,748 751,146,195
Non-controlling interests |ty 59,064,188 63,915,149
TOTAL EQUITY T 4ERE 788,407,936 815,061,344
The consolidated financial statements on pages 47 to 124 were N BUIRNUBEZZEURBRERER
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 June =~ —EFE—RENB_+HHAESESMARE
2015 and are signed on its behalf by: g, WHTIINEEKNEEZTZHE
FANG WEN QUAN LUI MAN SANG
Xt BN4&E
Chairman Director

EFER EF
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Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EEm R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #F —F—AF=F=1+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FOTRFRE G ER
Capital Capital Non-
Share Share  redemption  contribution Special Statutory ~ Exchange  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserves reserve profits Total interests Total
Bx Bx
BE  BROGE EERE HXEE  RARE  iEEE  ERBE EhE @ ERmRER st
HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK§ HK$ HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT B BT BT
note (i note (i)
TE() B £ i)
At 1 April 2013 RIFE-ZEMA—H 187011816 274638193 8,000 8,959,307 3460016 25092284 20580089 218245568 737995273 37204417 775,199,690
Proftfor te year REEER - - - - - - o M6 200056 8070 BUINE
Exchange difference arising on BEELZERER
transleon . - - - - - (216 S (B0 (80 (1420208)
Total comprehensive income AEEREANGESR
for the year - - - - - - (1231160)  22,049566 20818406 26710732 47,529,138
Appropriafion of maintenanceand  #EREER2ES
production safety funds (note (if) 2 E( FzE(i) ) - - - - - 2853 - (2859 - - -
Utiisation of maintenance and EBREERLES
production safety funds (note (if) 2 GEFR( FzE(i) ) - - - - - (136,556) - 136,556 - - -
Dividend recognised as disirbution 12 RS2
(1ote 13 ZBRE(HEn) - - - - - - - eI (7667484) o (e
At 31 March 2014 RZZ-ME
=B=1+-H 187,011,816 274,638,193 8,000 8,959,307 3460016 2781267 19348929 229907263 751,146,195 63915149 815,061,344
Loss for th year FEEBR - - - - - - - (17941969 (17941969  (5074317)  (23,016,286)
Exchange difference arising on BEELZERER
translation - - - - - - 627,806 - 627,806 223,356 851,162
Total comprehensive expense AEERENHESR
fo the year . . . . . S RAL (ITOM9BY)  (TIM6Y  (ASS096Y) (22,6512
Appropriafion of maintenanceand  #EREER2ES
production safety funds (note (if) 2 E( HzE(i) ) - - - - - 1922675 - (1922679) - - -
Utiisation of maintenance and EBREERLES
production safety funds (note (if) 2 GEFR( FzE(i) ) - - - - - (146,566) - 146,566 - - -
Dividend recognised as disrbution 12 RS EE2.
(1ote 13 BE( W) - - - - - - o 4B (4488284) S (a3
At 31 March 2015 RZZ-0%
=B=+-H 187,011,816 274,638,193 8,000 8,959,307 3460016 29,588,780 19,976,735 205700901 729,343,748 59,084,188 788,407,936
Notes: B 3L
() The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal ) AEEZEINREREGEDIAAIRE—BELEHE
amount of the share capital issued by the Company and the nominal amount of ARNTBRPR—NMN_EEESBHEXZAR
the share capital of a subsidiary acquired by the Company pursuant to a corporate BRAB LHMETZ AT EEMREITZAR
reorganisation in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on The Stock AEEEAWE—ENEATZRAEEM
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in 1992. EBZE,
(i) The statutory reserves represent (1) the appropriation of certain percentages of (i) EEEEHIBRPEAREINR( RE )

profit after taxation of the subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China
(the PRC) as recommended by the directors of those subsidiaries based on the
PRC statutory financial statements and (2) provision for production safety being
accrued by a subsidiary in the PRC at fixed rates based on operating revenue (the
maintenance and production safety funds), which is transferred from accumulated
profits to the specific reserve and could be utilised when expenses and capital
expenditures in production maintenance and safety measures are incurred.

UZWBREZEFRETEIAEYHIRE
M ENZEFMBAS ZRREEFNFHE
FEDZDERQEERE ZEME, LTIAR
AB—HMBEATUEEWNBEEZEE
FMREL(EEREEZ2ES) ARE
MBS RE BUREERERTERE
TEEE X H R EARZIFEN A,



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 £ Z _F—AF=F=+—HIFE

[zl Report 2015 JCR

2015 2014
HK$ HK$
T BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEE
(Loss) profit for the year REE( BB )& (23,016,286) 48,949,346
Adjustments for: M FIIRIBEL Z A%,
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FE(THHEFRIEE 3,163,023 3,163,422
Amortisation of intangible assets mH EEHE 12,115,738 12,220,191
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME MBENKRBIFE 6,827,580 5,707,497
Release of government grants in METEEEE BT
relation to certain assets (261,682) (1,090,070)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised on BEEEZRFERERIE
inventories - (411,170)
Income tax (credit) expense FRigie( #i% )2 & (1,245,389) 15,477,270
Interest income on bank deposits IRITE AR BN (9,701,679) (7,424,157)
Interest expenses on bank borrowing RITEEFNEXH 32,565 -
Investment income from foreign exchange SMERMIIRE ZIREIAN
linked investments (853,229) (758,946)
Loss on disposal/write off of property, HE WEEME. MENEE
plant and equipment 218 2,874,385 4,135,946
Write off of intangible assets B EEME — 12,828
Operating cash flows before movements EEESENRIZKERENE
in working capital (10,064,974) 79,982,157
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE(EMm)ED (10,201,520) 4,773,764
Increase in trade and bills receivables and FEUZ BRFR R UL Z 18 K
other receivables HE B Em (10,691,985) (16,079,976)
Increase in trade and other payables FE(TBRFR R H ' BT FRIE 0 20,246,397 7,826,230
(Decrease) increase in amount due to & —FERE A TFRIA
a related company (B> )1Ean (112,503) 536,851
Cash (used in) generated from operations KSR (R )EEZRS (10,824,585) 77,039,026
PRC income tax paid ST PRSI (5,432,372) (19,343,757)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REEE( TR EEZREFHA
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (16,256,957) 57,695,269
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HFERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #F —F—AF=F=1+—HILFE

2015 2014
HK$ HK$
T BT

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REIEH
Withdrawal of bank deposits RBUERITE 940,546,358 1,412,062,567
Interest received BWFE 9,701,679 5,894,512
Investment income received BRIRE N 853,229 2,288,591
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME. BBENMEZBZFTERIE

plant and equipment 25,001
Placement of bank deposits FEIRITEMR (913,828,050) (1,420,822 096)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEYE. BN ﬁ (34,035,436) (26,006,128)
Advance payment for property, plant and equipment 43, iR M 38 2 2 (1,249,559) (2,062,946)
Additions to intangible assets TEELEE (46,779) (695,316)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) KRETEHEE( TR ZRESFRE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 1,966,443 (29,340,816)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RS TS
Repayment of bank borrowing BIERTEE (5,000,000) -
Dividend paid to shareholders EfTERERZ R (4,488,284) (7,667,484)
Interest paid EfFE (32,565) -
Proceeds from bank borrowing IRITEEMENIE 5,000,000 -
Additions of government grant in e TEEERSBSHE

relation to certain assets 1,260,398 -
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders EfTIEERIRERZ RS = (28,104,900)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES A EXESTRACIREFEE (3,260,451) (35,772,384)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReNRESESEERF/\IBEE

CASH EQUIVALENTS (17,550,965) (7,417,931)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RENZRER

AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR REEEIER 175,048,174 182,682,184
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE SMEEXREEZHE

RATE CHANGES 869,241 (216,079)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REERZRER

AT END OF THE YEAR, ReFEER,

represented by bank balances and cash DURITEBRLIBEME 158,366,450 175,048,174




[zl Report 2015 JGR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
arETERARMRE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 £ Z _F—AF=F=+—HIFE

1.

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (SEHK). Its parent company and ultimate holding
company is Tianda Group Limited (Tianda Group), a private limited
company incorporated in Hong Kong, which is ultimately controlled
by Mr. Fang Wen Quan. The address of the registered office and the
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed on page 3 of
the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (RMB).
As the shares of the Company are listed in the SEHK, for the
convenience of the financial statements users, the results and
financial position of the Group are expressed in Hong Kong Dollar
(HK$), the presentation currency for the consolidated financial
statements.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 32.

—HREIR

ARE)B—ERASEHEEMM
MZRTRERRE), HROREBHS
RBBIRAT( FEBBAR) £,
HEHABRREERATBRKRER
BRAS( RKEH ) B—BRES
AEMA I ZFANBIRATE], B ME
EHEEEH, AR ZIMPEERE
BEHE MBI FRBIF N E,

KRBZNEEERBARE. B
RARBZIROREBEHA LT, B
HEMBRERZERERNSE, AEEZ
FHERYBARNRIILUE T ( ARSI 73
HRERZZHETE )25,

ARBD—FRIREEZTRAE. H
FTEMBERE 2 EBHMRIIEE,



SY/Bl Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EREITERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #F —F—AF=F=1+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (HKFRSs)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied for the first time in the current
year the following amendments to HKFRSs and a new
interpretation issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA).

Amendments to Investment Entities
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs
and a new interpretation in the current year has had no material
effect on the Group’s financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

2.

FERRTAT KRBT 2 BB U FIRE
SR
I~

(@) MEREFEIREEITEBMBRS
#ER
RAFE, FEEEXER
THBREBEAMAEREMZE
B BIREEAET AL E
T

EEMBRSER REEE
$1057. FEYH

$|§¢°’EEJk"12%J€&
BB TR ERISET
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BB DETELERE KESREE
L.JZF REeraE
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fz.JZIS o] o]l & 58
mE
BRSNS TETEES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
arETRERMRE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 ZZE _F—AF=H=+—HI FEZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. [ERH I KRBT ZEBYBRS
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (HKFRSS) (continued) #ERl (@)

ERMHEERERZ#HET REE

BB EER
AEETERSEATIE

BB AREN T REERT

(b)  New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (b)

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective; BB BREEL,
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments' EBUBREELN E/TIE
5958
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with EBUBREEN ZRELOKN
Customers? 551558
Amendments to Accounting for Acquisitions of BB REER Hilﬁ%é,ﬁ%wéﬁ
HKFRS 11 Interests in Joint Operations® EAEHERIPN 2R
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative? B ENS  REE
RIETA
Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable EBERS EBNEREEL
HKAS 16 and Methods of Depreciation and WREBGHE URIAL
HKAS 38 Amortisation* BIEE38RIETT A
Amendments to Agriculture: Bearer Plants* BB ES6 B FEMED
HKAS 16 and R EBTTE
HKAS 41 HJ%Msmnm
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee EBETENSE9 RERMTEL
Contributions? sﬁ{mTZK REMHT
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to EBUBRSEN “F-FEFETE
HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle? (CHEN —_FBBHE
B BREER
ZEEE
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to EBUBRE R “F——FE"F
HKFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle? CaES —SEEEHE
BB REEL
ZEENE
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to EBUBHREEN “F-"FE"F
HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle* CHES —@Eﬂﬁﬁﬂ*
B R R
ZEENE
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate EREENEY BUPBRRE
Financial Statements® EACHEN =ik
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets HEUBREEL REZHHARER
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its FIRREBT IYREREL
Associate or Joint Venture* Eﬁ?ﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂ% Bhg=En
HES BEEE

Amendments to Investment Entities: Applying the EBUBREEL KESE BRFS
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Consolidation Exception® 1055, FEY BRE 2 BloME R
and HKAS 28 V#Ei'ﬁﬁrk

WREBGHE

BISB28SRIERT A
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Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
arEMTERERMRE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #F —F—AF=F=1+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (HKFRSS) (continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with

limited exceptions. Earlier application is permitted.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further amended
in 2013 to include the new requirements for general hedge
accounting. Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in
2014 mainly to include a) impairment requirements for financial
assets and b) limited amendments to the classification and
measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through
other comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category
for certain simple debt instruments.

2.

BT RIEIET 2 EBUBRE
HER (1)

EIEMERRERZ #a] REE
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G2 EEHBE
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A2 FEEREN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
arETRERMRE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 ZZE _F—AF=H=+—HI FEZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (HKFRSS) (continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair value at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

2. MERFINR&EBITIZEBUBRE
A8l (@)

(b)

ERMERERER T REE
BB EER (E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EREITERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #F —F—AF=F=1+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (HKFRSS) (continued)

(b)  New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.

2. [ERFIREETZEBYHRS
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (HKFRSS) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

. The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting. However,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has
been overhauled and replaced with the principle of
an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.

The directors of the Company (the Directors) anticipate
that the application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a
material impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities. Regarding the Group’s
financial assets, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a
single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (HKFRSS) (continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

. Step 3: Determine the transaction price

. Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

. Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control
of the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (HKFRSS) (continued)

(b)  New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS
15 in the future may have a material impact on the amounts
reported and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group
performs a detailed review.

Except as described above, the Directors anticipate
that the application of the other new and revised HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on SEHK
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost
is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS
36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line
with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the relevant cash-generating unit (CGU) or groups of CGUs,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of
the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit, and then to the other
assets of the unit pro rata based on of the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss in consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on
disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for discounts and sales
related taxes.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when goods
are delivered and title has passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction
can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress as described below) are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
loss, if any.

Construction in progress for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit and loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

. the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

. the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

. the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

. how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

. the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

. the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the
date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition,
internally-generated intangible asset is measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if
any), on the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

TESTHE(®E)

AN
HRIBEFRE IR EELRRER
BRI

FEEREN( 2N B L IZRIEEME
BRIMEEZNMBEEZELEE, &
REETEHRTI2EERES FHE

7
=701

© EREREEUEZENEEY
HIEAEEZ KW T

© TREREERERSHEER
BEEZED;

© ERREEEREEZ/ET;

. EBREEHEESTRESEND
ZA;

- BRAZIYEFBARE BBERE
CERLSAMEENFERSEHE
BREE &

© BAUREENEERMEDR
B IL RS 2 B8

MARBEEZEREEMILTHE
B EHERELEEEXTE LY
ERIRER R EE 2R
MENSTEE BN EEDT FHED,
BRI SRS IS E £ BRI IR 1B = A
bR RIDLHERIE, NBEEZELE
EAF IR B A R R 5t i EE & RETRVE RS
B(wA) TREEFWEZELE
EREZZEEFE,



68

Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
arETRERMRE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #F —F—AF=F=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured
at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the period
when the asset is derecognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when an entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and bills receivables, other receivables, bank deposits
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy in impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

For financial assets including trade receivables, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the average credit period of 60 days, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #E _F—AF=F=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that from an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amount
due to a related company and dividend payable to non-controlling
shareholders are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when, and only when,
the Group’s obligation are discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #E _F—AF=F=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated cost of completion and cost necessary to make the
sale.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGU, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGU for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that
they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

TESHHE(®E)

7

FETEAA R ERFEME
h 2 BHEEFIE, PUATILUIEF %
S, TRRFEIET B IS
PRt 2 AT AR A R At S 8
PR

B REREE( mERIN JZRIER
=

RIEHR, AEERBFTEDT
ERFEHERZEERELEEZ K
HE UEEZSFEESREHREIM
REEBETR. WEETaaEms
AlgditREEC WS RLIEE
RERE( B )ZEE. AT
ARE—EEZYWEIREE BIAEE
AEtZEEECReEEENZTW
ElEE. BRI SERKE—Z D
Wig, IR ZEETSTREE—RE
EEEN, nhkEHCEEREER
m—pEkkEcRPREELESENE

)E'JUO

oEAFRERCENEE DR
DIRFERAEG UL REETSRER
Al HLL B

e RIEA BEEREENK
ARERBEMETZRESETE &
AHMAEREE, MAtRKRERET)
ERRRAITRFITRERRE, Uk
B E B i5E B ISR E 2 FHE R %
BE(METRKBERERTHESL)
2B E R,

Wit EENIReELEN 2T
WeEleEEREREE ZEESR
EELEMZRABEZHRRSZHT
WOl EE, RERIERIIFIIBmTER.



74

Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
arEMTRERMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #F —F—AF=F=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or CGU in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period except for exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange differences are
also recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and
their income and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

From 1 April 2010 onwards, on the disposal of a foreign
operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation),
exchange difference accumulated in equity arisen from the translation
of the subsidiary or associate’s functional currency, RMB, to the
Company'’s functional currency, HK$, before the change in functional
currency of the Company from HK$ to RMB, are reclassified to profit
or loss. Whereas exchange difference accumulated in equity arisen
from the translation of subsidiary or associate’s and the Company’s
functional currency, RMB, to the Group’s presentation currency, HKS$,
was transferred directly to accumulated profits.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in equity under the heading of
exchange reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise
acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to profit
or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plan and
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included
in the accounting for the business combination.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leasing (continued)
Leasehold land and building (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next
financial year.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
Determining whether an impairment is required requires an
estimation of recoverable amounts of relevant intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment or the respective CGU in which the
goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment belong,
which is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell.
If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, recoverable
amount shall be estimated for individual asset. If it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Group
shall determine the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the relevant assets or
the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. The discount rate represents rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or the CGU for which the future cash flow estimates have not
been adjusted. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected or there is a downward revision of future estimated cash
flows due to unfavourable changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise. Details of the recoverable amount
calculation of the relevant assets and respective CGU are disclosed in
note 33.

Estimated impairment of trade and bills receivables and other
receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 March 2015, the carrying amount of trade
and bills receivables was HK$47,562,508 (2014: HK$36,863,437).
No allowance for doubtful debts has been provided for both reporting
periods.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment
over their estimated useful lives, using straight-line method, at the
rates ranging from 3% to 33.33% per annum. The estimated useful
lives that the Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment
reflect the Directors’ estimation of the periods that the Group intends
to derive future economic benefits from the use of the assets. Actual
economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review
could result in a change in useful lives and therefore depreciation and
impairment losses in future years.

As at 31 March 2015, the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment is HK$168,057,695 (2014: HK$141,227,045). Details
of the useful lives of the property, plant and equipment are disclosed
in note 14.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern in order to support
its business and maximise shareholders value. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising share capital, accumulated
profits and other reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis
to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
the Group’s business. The Directors also balance its overall capital
structure through payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
the issue of new debts.
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6.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a.  Categories of financial instruments

Financial instrument 2015 2014
classification HK$ HK$
ST EHE T BT
Financial assets
EHEE
Trade and bills receivables and Loans and receivables
other receivables* 48,700,986 37,479,191
FEU AR SRR U R 4% B UK
KHEY R
Bank deposits Loans and receivables 225,818,701 252,216,102
IRITIENX = E S NE
Bank balances and cash Loans and receivables 158,366,450 175,048,174
IRITEBRNRIEE B FEUGK
432,886,137 464,743,467
Financial liabilities
THAaE
Trade and other payables** At amortised cost 19,904,712 16,938,961
FE(TBRFN R HLE BT 51 REERL A
Amount due to a related company At amortised cost 1,355,935 1,463,087
[EfT —FEREE A EFRIA & 8 Y A
21,260,647 18,402,048
* Excluding prepayments and deposits * FEEENRERIES
** Excluding accruals, deposits from customers and value added tax b TEIEEIE EFRIReRE
payables fTIg1ER

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and bills receivables and other receivables, bank deposits
and bank balances, trade and other payables, amount due to
a related company. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. It is, and has been throughout
the year, the Group’s policy not to enter into trading of
derivative financial instruments.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
include credit risk, market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk
and price risk) and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to perform
an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group
requires some of its customers to make prepayment on their
purchase of pharmaceutical products. And the management
has delegated a team responsible for the determination of
credit limits for other customers, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of each reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.

At 31 March 2015, the Group has concentration of credit
risk relating to trade receivables as 28.6% (2014: 29.5%) of
the outstanding balances is due from five (2014: five) external
customers in the PRC. Other than several major customers, the
exposure is widely spread over a large number of customers
during the current financial year.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies or state-owned banks
located in the PRC.
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6.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. &I E (@)
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HEEMREERENRBER(E)
(continued)
Market risks TG EE
(i) Currency risk () EfEEE

Certain bank deposits, trade receivables, other AEBETRTE
receivables and trade payables of the Group are . FEUWERFR. HE BILEK
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group currently K FEATBRFRLASMNEESIME, &K
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. £ E B By il Hh R
However, the management monitors foreign exchange %R, AT, EEEBIRIMNE
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign b, Wi ERERER
currency exposure should the need arise. i E K IME R R,

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign ISR, AEELL
currency denominated monetary assets and monetary SNEES(E EMEERER
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows: BEZIREENT.

Assets Liabilities
BE af
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
HKS$ BT 9,504,477 18,881,212 - -
United States Dollar =TT
(US$) 676 16,180,259 - -
Euro (EUR) ELTT 8,075 8,143 - -
Australian Dollar BT
(AUD) 1,833,203 1,131,199 607,286 1,413,944
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Market risks (continued)

()

Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 4% (2014: 4%) increase and decrease in RMB,
the functional currency of the respective group entities,
against the relevant foreign currencies for the years
ended 31 March 2015 and 2014. The sensitivity rate
represents management’'s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates with
reference to historical fluctuation of foreign exchange
rates during the year. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at 31 March 2015 and
2014 for a corresponding change in foreign currencies
rates. A negative/positive number below indicates a
decreasef/increase in post-tax profit for the year where
the RMB strengthens against the relevant currencies.
For a weakening of RMB against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
post-tax profit for the year.

b.

tTHE(®)
FREREERERBR(E)

G ER &)
() EmEEE)

TRFFAEBERE
ETERERTENE
—A=T—HIFEARK
(1ERBEE B IREENS )
SRR SN E K E4%
(ZEFE—MF. 4% )z BUH
E. HRERIEERESX®
FRIBFEER KR ENMEIER
o RE S B E EE L 5,
BRE DI ESIELIIMNES]
BEZRFEEBIERTR
E-RER"EFE—MNF=H
=+—HHEREEEE
AEERE, HARBRA
BEEFE BILLTEa IE
BT AEEZ RIRE N
D 1EIN, AR R
RS E BiSEHAE
EzRREaHEERSER
Mk 822,

2015 2014

HK$ HK$

T BT

HK$ BT (365,000) (610,000)
us$ ETT (23) (540,000)
AUD BT (41,000) 9,000

The balances of bank deposits denominated in
foreign currencies fluctuated throughout the year and
in management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Market risks (continued)

(1)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate on bank deposits and bank balances which
carry at prevailing market interest rates. The Group
currently does not have any interest rate hedging policy.
However, the Group monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate has
decreased during the current year mainly due to the
decrease in variable rate bank deposits and bank
balances at the year end.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to the bank deposits
and bank balances which bear floating interest rates at
the end of the reporting period. A 10 basis points (2014:
10 basis points) increase or decrease is used to present
management assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates for those balances mainly
denominated in RMB and HK$ at the year end.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2014:
10 basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit/loss for
the year ended 31 March 2015 would increase/decrease
approximately by HK$384,000 (2014: HK$427,000).
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6.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. &I E(@®)
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HMBEMEERENBIR(E)

(continued)
Liquidity risk TEENIEE B

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group AEEREERIERRE
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents B, BEEREFRENBEEE
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group’s ERTERERAENAAEER
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. ZEEBRBEERAKIREERE

RENZ LB ZIKF,

The following table details the Group’s remaining TRV AEEREREE
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities THEBZIEMTESREE R
based on the agreed repayment dates. The table has been BHHR, ZERTIRBAEER
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial oREKEEEHEBBEZREH
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be HrzemaBERirRREERER
required to pay. &,

Weighted
average Total
effective Less than 3months  undiscounted Carrying
interest 3 months to 1 year cash flows amount
INEFY =@ XURRE
BEFIE  OR=ER E—F MERE BREE
% HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Asat31March2015 WR_Z—0TF
=B=+—H
Trade and other payables [E{TBEFR R HCEFTFR - 19,526,354 378,358 19,904,712 19,904,712
Amount due to a EfT—RBEAS)NIE
related company - 1,355,935 - 1,355,935 1,355,935
20,882,289 378,358 21,260,647 21,260,647
Weighted
average Total
effective Less than 3months  undiscounted Carrying
interest 3 months to 1 year cash flows amount
IS @B REERE
BRAZE  OR=ER E—F MEEE REE
% HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Asat31March2014 R”F—F
=B=+—H
Trade and other payables [E{TERFNN HEEFTFX - 16,561,982 376,979 16,938,961 16,938,961
Amount due to a e —EREA DB
related company - 1,463,087 - 1,463,087 1,463,087

18,025,069 376,979 18,402,048 18,402,048
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

c. Fair value
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of all
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate to
their corresponding fair values.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Managing Director of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), for the purposes
of resources allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on the types of goods delivered. The Group focuses on
pharmaceutical and biotechnology business and the CODM has
chosen to review the financial performance of this business as a
whole for allocating resources and assessing performance. The Group
has only one operating segment. In addition, the CODM is of the
opinion that the presentation of assets and liabilities in accordance
with the operating segments is not meaningful as the CODM monitors
the Group'’s assets and liabilities as a whole which is more efficient
and effective. Accordingly, no segment assets and liabilities are
presented.

Other than the revenue analysis as set out in note 7(e), no
operating results and other discrete financial information relating
to major products is prepared regularly for internal reporting to the
CODM for resources allocation and performance assessment.
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7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. ARDEER (@)
(a)  Segment revenue and results DEBBN R FEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and UTBAREBRZWNKRFES
results. pakiims
2015 2014
HK$ HK$
IT BT
REVENUE - EXTERNAL I\ - MR 139,366,849 247,173,069
SEGMENT (LOSS) PROFIT DEB( B8 )igaF (16,632,368) 59,794,405
Other income HEBA 6,263,348 5,992,416
Other gains and losses HEWmRER (2,877,805) (4,033,335)
Unallocated expenses Rt (9,769,461) (12,804,140)
(Loss) profit for the year AKEE( BB )@mF) (23,016,286) 48,949,346

The accounting policies of the operating segment
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3. Segment (loss) profit represents the (loss) profit
after tax earned by the segment without allocation of central
administration costs, directors’ salaries, certain other income,
and other gains and losses. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

REDEZ ST BUEREIEE
SFTiAAEEZ @ETEERMER, 5
#B( Bs18 )imAIE D BRPT RN R
IRE( B8 )i, REDBHR
ITHRA, EFFHE. ETHER
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PERRFTMEMS, LHEE
BEEBERREZRIFTED
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7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

7. WARDEBER (@)

Other segment information (b) HEDHER
2015
Pharmaceutical
and
biotechnology
business Unallocated Total
EeLE
EET RPE FEH
HK$ HK$ HK$
HTT BT BT
Amount included in the measure of 5t & %> 2B sl 518 EL
segment profit or loss or DEHEERFTAZ SR
segment assets
Additions of property, NEWME BBENRE
plant and equipment 36,091,223 8,199 36,099,422
Amortisation of intangible assets EREEHE 12,115,738 - 12,115,738
Depreciation of property, M. BB NREBIFE
plant and equipment 6,419,327 408,253 6,827,580
Amortisation of prepaid AR ERIEHE
lease payments 3,163,023 - 3,163,023
Loss on disposal/write off of HE MIEME. MER
property, plant and equipment BB 2,874,385 - 2,874,385
Interest income IISUYON 3,544,656 6,157,023 9,701,679
Investment income REIN = 853,229 853,229
Income tax credit FriStRit® (1,245,389) = (1,245,389)
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7.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. WARDEBER (@)
(b)  Other segment information (continued) (b) EBeofsErE)
2014
Pharmaceutical
and
biotechnology
business Unallocated Total
EgEE
Gy ES e vl 45
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Amount included in the measure of 5t & 72 2Bi&F 2B 18k
segment profit or loss or DEHEERFTAZ R
segment assets
Additions of property, NEVME BBENRRE
plant and equipment 33,128,635 79,680 33,208,315
Amortisation of intangible assets EmREE#E 12,220,191 - 12,220,191
Depreciation of property, M. B NREBITE
plant and equipment 5,241,661 465,836 5,707,497
Amortisation of prepaid AR ERIEHE
lease payments 3,163,422 - 3,163,422
Loss on disposal/write off of HE MIEME. MENM
property, plant and equipment B P i 4,131,634 4,312 4,135,946
Write off of intangible assets MEBETEE 12,828 - 12,828
Reversal of impairment loss BOMEFEERRZRE
recognised on inventories B8 411,170 - 411,170
Interest income SISYON 2,997,459 4,426,698 7,424,157
Investment income BN - 758,946 758,946
Income tax expenses FriSias 15,477,270 - 15,477,270
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7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. WARDEER (@)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Geographical information

(c)

The Group principally operates in the PRC (country of

domicile), Hong Kong and Australia.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
sales by geographical market based on the location of
operations irrespective of the origin of goods/services.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and

information about its non-current assets by
location of the assets are detailed below:

geographical

HhEE R

REEF SR E (ST
EER ). EBRIEAFBEEE
%%o

TRRIBEBAEIZ AR
EERBEDS( AwmEm R
2R )85 Z HED .

REBRBIMNEEF 2N
SRR RS D 2 IFR
BRI

NER
BEE

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current assets

REIMPEEZIA FEREBEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
The PRC (country of domicile) & ( & FRF1E

%) 137,128,345 244,494,845 427,057,375 413,932,410
Hong Kong Bib 491,754 317,056 2,592,107 3,139,655
Australia TRAA TR 1,746,750 2,361,168 9,077,453 11,599,391
139,366,849 247,173,069 438,726,935 428,671,456

Information about major customer (d) BEEFEEFZER

No major customer has been accounted for 10% or more
of the Group’s revenue for both reporting periods.

PR B R &5 B, W E
EEFIEREBWAN10% L L.

Revenue from major products () FEERZIWA
2015 2014
HK$ HK$
T BT
Pharmaceutical and biotechnology products &% 4= 4] &
— Cerebroprotein Hydrolysate for Injection ~ — ;57 F3 s &8 ER 7K B2 4 5,241,790 128,401,169
— Tuoping Valsartan Capsules - B EEIVIBRE 57,657,997 49,051,746
— Tuoen lbuprofen Suspension and Drops ~ — iEERiR SRR M
T 32,258,193 26,212,905
- Others -HEe 44,208,869 43,507,249
139,366,849 247,173,069
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 ZZE _F—AF=H=1+—HI FEZ

8(a). OTHER INCOME

2015 2014
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest income on bank deposits IRITEARF)BUZN 9,701,679 7,424,157
Investment income from foreign exchange SMNERMIIRE ZIREIIAN
linked investments 853,229 758,946
Release of government grants in relation to e TEEZE BB HEE
certain assets (note 22) ( FMFzE22) 261,682 1,090,070
Reversal of impairment loss recognised BoMEEERZ REEE
on inventories - 411,170
Unconditional government grants (note) AR BUFEEN( BIET) 1,434,333 705,912
Management fee income from a —EBEQTIZEEERA
related company (note 30(b)) ( BFEE30(b) ) - 578,928
Others HE 1,037,669 444687
13,288,592 11,413,870
Note: During the year ended 31 March 2015, a PRC subsidiary received an fsE:. REBEEZFE—AF=A=+—HL%F

amount of approximately HK$1,434,000 (2014: HK$706,000) to recognise
the eminent brand of pharmaceutical and biotechnology products.

8(b). OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

ER, —E+EHEA S WEIEL
1,434,00038 7o ( ZZF— U4 706,000

7o )UREEEEYERZ E SR,

8(b). HeWmMEiE

2015 2014

HK$ HK$

T BT

Exchange gain (loss) Erlas( B8 ) 399,354 (586,157)
Loss on disposal/write off of property, HE B BMER

plant and equipment R EE (2,874,385) (4,135,946)

Write off of intangible assets WiEEEEE = (12,828)

(2475031)  (4734931)
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9. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE 9. PRSIR( K% )X
2015 2014
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Current tax: BpEATRIE.
PRC enterprise income tax hE RS 4,058,788 16,085,665
Overprovision in prior years: BEFEBEEEE.
PRC enterprise income tax R 1k 2P 1SR (932,058) (234,194)
Deferred tax (note 24): EIERRIE ( FyEE24 ).
Current year REE (4,372,119) (374,201)

(1,245,389) 15,477,270

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is
not subject to any income tax.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years. No provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax has been made as the Group has no assessable profit arising in,
or derived from, Hong Kong for both years.

The tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group is 25%,
except Yunnan Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (Meng Sheng
Pharmaceutical) and Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) Ltd (Tianda
Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai)), subsidiaries of the Group.

Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical is established in the Kunming
economic development zone. Pursuant to the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC, Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical is engaged in
Western China Development and was entitled to a preferential tax rate
of 15% for both years. Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) is qualified
as advanced technology enterprises and has obtained approvals from
the relevant tax authorities for the applicable tax rate reduced to 15%
for a period of 3 years up to 2015.

ARERBSEEEMAZ, B
BRI RIS,

KMEFERN, FBFERIEME
FHERR TR i A LATR 2=16.5%71 B, HR
AEBEMEFELETESBEER
REFBZEERRF), STEERS
B EIREME,

PRAEE M EA S Erm AL
EERAS( BETERE )RRKEX
(HKB)BERAS( RKEXE(KE) )
Sh AEBTEEATZRES
25%.,

BEBREREBREEREERR
3o IRIBPEIRRE ZIERENIER, BHE
B S EPEFERRE, SIS MIEEE
NEBEBERE1%, RAEEZE( K )
FESTRMTEEER, ESERRE
HEAMEB R 2 IR T IRE15%, S
=%, BEE"FT-hFARIL
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #E _F—AF=F=+—HIFE

9.  INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (continued)

The corporate tax rate applicable to Tianda Pharmaceuticals
(Australia) Pty Ltd (Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia)), a subsidiary (
of the Company established and operating in Australia, is 30% for
both years. No provision for the Australian income tax has been
provided as the Group had no taxable profit arising in Australia for

both years.

The income tax (credit) expense for both years can be
reconciled to the (loss) profit before tax per the consolidated e
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

follows:

9. FER(IKR )<t (@)

RMEEEA, BARX
BANEE )ERAT ( RARZEZ( *'jc
M), ARBRIBARITER LN E
ZHEBAT )ZEERE A%, EEE\
AEBETEMEFEL BTRAHEE

PN ES

AR A, AU E SRR S5 A

1SR .

( B8 )iEFE RN T

MAEFEZ s ( %R )3 HE
BiEmMECEEWE@mERZFRICE

2015 2014
HK$ HK$
T BT
(Loss) profit before tax brie el ( 518 )imr (24,261,675) 64,426,616
Tax at 25% for the years ended BEF—hER"F—MNF
31 March 2015 and 2014 =A=1+—HIEFE%X25%
MEAEZIRIE (6,065,419) 16,106,654
Tax effect of expenses not deductible MMM ATHR L
for tax purpose Mg E 1,105,119 826,771
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose ~ FHIRFE T = B BRI Z
s E (2,045,747) (1,284,192)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REDRIBEEBZRBEEE 8,276,629 5,607,553
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised & FFiB{F KRR Z e IB K12 = (2,516,163)
Tax effect on deductible temporary differences B AR MR O] 1R Bt
previously not recognised EBEZMBEE 3,075 (43,553)
Effect of tax concession grant to a PRC subsidiary 2% —RFE BT
RIBR R 2 (857,714) (6,529,780)
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBREEE (932,059) (234,194)
Withholding tax of income generated from FEfEATEEZCWALZ
the PRC subsidiaries ki (717,880) 3,287,751
Others HE (11,393) 256,423
Income tax (credit) expense for the year REEMER(IKR ) H (1,245,389) 15,477,270

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 24.

IESETRIE 2 5F B & A BT aE24
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #F —F—AF=F=1+—HILFE

10.  (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

10. KREE( BB )imf)

2015 2014
HKS$ HK$
T BT
(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at REE( R )EF SR
after charging:
Directors’ emoluments (note 11) EEME( MEEN) 399,677 360,167
Other staff costs HE BT A
Salaries and other benefits HENETEA 31,741,857 43,936,106
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BRARERIETEIHR 3,840,998 3,498,835
Total staff costs BT A% 35,982,532 47,795,108
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FE{T T EFIEE 3,163,023 3,163,422
Auditors’ remuneration 1Z M El = 1,457,362 1,220,817
Cost of inventories recognised as expense BRATHEZFEMAK
(including of amortisation of intangible assets of ~ ( E3E&12,115,738}8 75
HK$12,115,738 (2014: HK$12,220,191)) ( ZZ—[UE. 122201915 7T )
BREEZEE) 69,596,419 88,692,492
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M. WEREEITE 6,827,580 5,707,497




[zl Report 2015 JRCRY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

arETSRERMRE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 ZZE _F—AF=H=1+—HI FEZ

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND EMPLOYEES’ 1. BEF moTHRAENREEMNE
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments Q) ESKESTBRAEMS
The emoluments of the Directors and the chief executive RIBHEEHPIZEE RS
on a name basis are as follows: THRASMEWT:
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE_ZS—HRE=B=+—HIt
FE
Other emoluments
HuEbl<
Salaries Retirement
and other benefits scheme Total
Fees benefits  contributions emoluments
ek BIAER
e HEEF FTEIHR iRk
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Fang Wen Quan** 73 X HEH 60,000 = = 60,000
Shi Shaobin* (appointed on ~ Ff5 /it
13 March 2015) (RZE—R%=8
T=HE%T) 3,677 - - 3,677
Liu Huijiang* ggE 60,000 - - 60,000
Lui Man Sang* aX&E! 69,000 - - 69,000
Lam Yat Fai B IE 69,000 - - 69,000
Chiu Sung Hong R 69,000 - - 69,000
Chiu Fan Wa L E 69,000 - - 69,000
399,677 - - 399,677
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #F —F—AF=F=1+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(@)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2014

"N EF ERTHRAEREEME

(&)

(@) EERESITHRAEME (@)
HE_T-NF=F=+—HL

FE
Other emoluments
Heie
Salaries Retirement
and other  benefits scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments
HER BIRER
gk Hewd SHEIER il
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Fang Wen Quan** Fa M HE 60,000 - - 60,000
Liu Huijiang* geiE 60,000 - - 60,000
Lui Man Sang* (appointed on X 4&*( RZF—=
30 September 2013) NA=+HEZE) 30,167 - - 30,167
Li Suiming* (resigned on FEl (RIZER—=5F
30 September 2013) NE=+HEMT) 30,000 - - 30,000
Lam Yat Fai b 60,000 - - 60,000
Chiu Sung Hong HERE 60,000 - - 60,000
Chiu Fan Wa fEy 60,000 - - 60,000
360,167 - - 360,167
* Executive Directors * WITES

# Chief executive

=T N
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 ZZE _F—AF=H=1+—HI FEZ

11.  DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES’ "N, EF RSTHAEKE S

EMOLUMENTS (continued) (#&)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued) () EBEERESTHRAEMES(E)
None of the Directors waived any emoluments during the BHEZF—AFKERZF—N
years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014. F=B=1+—HIFE, IiEE

EWETOUME,

(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) {Eéﬂﬂﬁ
During the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2015, of the REEZFE—NFERERZTE
five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, none —hF=A=+—HLFE K
was a director of the Company whose emolument is included EELAEESMEALTES,
in the disclosures in note (a) above. The emoluments of the EEOALBARIES(KE
remaining five individuals were as follows: ZEER £ (a)KE ). 2

BRBATZHMENT.

2015 2014
HK$ HK$
T BT
Salaries and other benefits HFEeRkHEER 4,140,908 5,009,070
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 1B K 1@l 5121t ¢ 35,000 43,750
4,175,908 5,052,820
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEZMENFLUTEE

A
2015 2014
No. of No. of
employees employees
e 2 & HE EEEE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 F 8 75%1,000,000/ 7T 4 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 75 Z1,500,0007 7T = 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,00178 75 22,000,000 7T -
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the RMEFEER, A
Group to the Directors and five highest paid individuals MEEROZ&EHEA T
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as e, LMEBREMARERT
compensation for loss of office. IIMAREE S 2 BB E & B

B HE{E,
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #F —F—AF=F=1+—HILFE

12. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

12.

Bz ( B8 )BA

AABRRELZRER(BE)
BHRET IR E:

2015 2014
HK$ HK$
BT BT

(Loss) earnings ( B518 &7
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of

basic (loss) earnings per share

SAAEERER(BE )BT
PRABZ ( 518 )BT

(17,941,969) 22,049,566

Number of shares vk s
Number of ordinary shares in issue
for the purpose of basic (loss)

earnings per share

HEEBREAR(BE )BT
FTRAZE&{TEEREHE

1,870,118,160 1,870,118,160

No diluted (loss) earnings per share is presented as the
Company did not have any dilutive shares in issue during both years.

13.  DIVIDENDS

The final dividend of HK0.24 cent per share in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: final dividend of HK0.41 cent per
share) had been proposed by the Directors and was approved by the
shareholders at Annual General Meeting. Dividends with aggregate
amount of HK$4,488,284 (2014: HK$7,667,484) were paid and were
recognised as distribution during the year ended 31 March 2015.

No dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2015 has
been proposed by the directors (2014: final dividend of HK0.24 cent
per share).

13.

RRA XS R EFE RS EE
HEETRESFRZRD, SMIES
SIERREE( BE)EA.

iRE

BEFEEEMEE_T—NE=A
=+—HIFFEIRZEREIIREFHR0.24
B ZFE—=5F. REKREBSHR4
B, WERKERBEFEXE LER
SR A, & 11448828438 0 ( —FE—Y
. 766748480 )2 IREREECZE
—hRF=B=1t—HIFEASIRT
WHER A D K,

EEfEEREE_T—HEF=
B=+—HIFERERS( ZF—N0
. REBRRE B A20.24384 ).
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 ZZE _F—AF=H=1+—HI FEZ

14.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. ¥R, BB ke

101

Furniture,
Plant and Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Construction
Buildings machinery  improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
HE HEE
BF BERESE  EEE &S RE EEIR ok
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
COST i
At 1 April 2013 RIZ—=ENS—H 105,137,151 25,110,982 1,546,913 5,558,121 5,875,293 - 143228460
Exchange realignment ErRfE - (5,866) - (21,557) (2,223) (93,082) (122,728)
Additions HE - 1,884,116 - 1,078,435 616,048 29,629,716 33,208,315
Disposalsfwritten-off HE /s - (11,080,464) - (41,049) - - (121513
At 31 March 2014 and RZIZE—ME=RA=+—H
1 April 2014 RZF-NENA—H 105,137,151 15,908,768 1,546,913 6,573,950 6,489,118 29,536,634 165,192,534
Exchange realignment ERAE 392,758 79,834 - (72,154) 16,189 89,542 506,169
Addtions HE - 1,572,126 - 480,978 553,359 33,492,959 36,099,422
Disposals/written-off HE /i - (3,410,733) - (3,746,640) (97,843) (15,922) (7,271,138)
Transfer from (to) BEE (R )ERIE
construction in progress 13,038,925 36,616,399 - 13,140,797 - (62,7%,121) -
At 31 March 2015 RZZ—0%F
=B=1+—-H 118,568,834 50,766,394 1,546,913 16,376,931 6,960,823 307,092 194,526,987
ACCUMULATED FEHE
DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2013 RIFE—=8EMNE—H 8,887,061 11,436,051 77,346 2,567,215 2,293,007 - 25,260,680
Exchange realignment ERAE (5,032) (7.424) - (2,933) (1,732) - (17,121)
Provided for the year REEEAE 1,601,630 2,363,078 154,691 918,191 669,907 - 5,707,497
Eliminated on HE /R E
disposalsiwritten-off - (6,954,947) - (30,620) - - (6,985,567)
At 31 March 2014 and RIZ—NE
1 April 2014 =B=+—HRk
“Z-MEME—H 10,483,659 6,836,758 232,037 3,451,853 2,961,182 - 23,965,489
Exchange realignment ERAE 39,412 24,878 - (25,860) 9,545 - 47,975
Provided for the year AEERE 1,693,923 2,815,024 154,691 1,453,379 710,563 - 6,827,580
Eliminated on HE /HisErEE
disposalswritten-off - (3,014,983) - (1,335,060) (21,709) - (4,371,752)
At 31 March 2015 RZE—RE=R=1+—H 12,216,994 6,661,677 386,728 3,544,312 3,659,581 - 26,469,292
CARRYING VALUES FREE
At 31 March 2015 RIE—RE=BA=1+—H 106351840 44,104,717 1,160,185 12,832,619 3,301,242 307,092 168,057,695
At 31 March 2014 RIFE—MNE=F=+—H 94,653,492 9,072,010 1,314,876 3,122,097 3,527,936 29,536,634 141,227,045

The buildings, which are situated on leasehold land held under
medium-term leases, are located in the PRC.

RPEEOEECHESI EZ

BFIM R PR,
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #F —F—AF=F=1+—HILFE

14.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings
Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

10% — 33.33% or the term
of the lease, if shorter

3% - 10% 1BF
5% — 10% &% B B A28
HEYEEE

10% — 20% RIE, EENRE
10% — 20% "B

15. FA{JFHHERKIE

14. ¥ BB KEE(®E)

Eir¥E BEEREBEEUE
BIRIE T ERTRITE,

3%~ 10%
5%~ 10%
10% — 33.33%3%
HEH(WEE)
10% — 20%
10% — 20%

2015 2014
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Prepaid lease payments for medium-term URFEZ FHAE Tt

leasehold land in the PRC: FE{TFHEFRIE,

Included in current assets BERRBEEN 3,165,017 3,153,484
Included in non-current assets BERIERFEEN 84,763,880 87,608,473
87,928,897 90,761,957

Prepaid lease payments are released to profit or loss over the

lease terms of 40 to 50 years.

IR m R

FA{T TH E X IAR40E50F HEF A
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16.

GOODWILL 16. BHE
Goodwill is allocated to the following CGUs: BESBRE TIIREEFEN:
Meng Tianda Tianda
Sheng Pharmaceuticals Pharmaceuticals
Pharmaceutical (Australia) (Zhuhai) Total
RARBEZ RABEZ
RAEE  (RAFD) (%i8) ez
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
cosT Pl
At 1 April 2013 RIE—=FMNBE—H 6,674,893 2,886,305 102,387,702 111,948,900
Exchange realignment fE R - (330,438) (264) (330,702)
At 31 March 2014 RIE—MFE=B=1+—H
and 1 April 2014 R _FE—MENBE—H 6,674,893 2,555,867 102,387,438 111,618,198
Exchange realignment [T 24,413 (416,112) 388,990 (2,709)
At 31 March 2015 RIE—HFE=H=1+—H 6,699,306 2,139,755 102,776,428 111,615,489
Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill as at 31 BBER_FE—OhFERER-F—MF
March 2015 and 2014 are disclosed in note 33. =B=+—HzBg2REAHZFSE

INIREERKS 4N
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17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
Licenses and
Trademark permits Total
BiE PERKREIFEE fast
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
cosT B
At 1 April 2013 RZE—=FME—H 7,428,650 98,046,023 105,474,673
Exchange realignment [ER AR (850,715) (256,840) (1,107,555)
Additions NE 51,768 643,548 695,316
Written off of intangible assets WiEErEE (12,917) - (12,917)
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 RIF—NFE=B=+—H
RIE—MENE—H 6,616,786 98,432,731 105,049,517
Exchange realignment [ER AR (1,080,799) (74,594) (1,155,393)
Additions NE 21,516 25,263 46,779
At 31 March 2015 R_E—HRhFE=B=1+—H 5,557,503 98,383,400 103,940,903
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION e
At 1 April 2013 RZE—=FMNE—H 100 6,708,741 6,708,841
Exchange realignment [ER AR (@) (40,690) (40,701)
Provided for the year KEEEE - 12,220,191 12,220,191
Written off of intangible assets WiEErEE (89) - (89)
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 RIF—NFE=B=+—H
“F-MENB—AH - 18,888,242 18,888,242
Exchange realignment [ER AR - (102,601) (102,601)
Provided for the year REEREE - 12,115,738 12,115,738
At 31 March 2015 R_E—HRhFE=B=1+—H - 30,901,379 30,901,379
CARRYING VALUE RREIE
At 31 March 2015 R_EFE—HRhFE=B=1+—H 5,557,503 67,482,021 73,039,524
At 31 March 2014 RIE—MNE=B=1+—H 6,616,786 79,544,489 86,161,275
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 ZZE _F—AF=H=+—HI FEZ

17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Intangible assets are allocated to the following CGUs:

H
58
\ﬂ]]>I

EE @)

BREESRETIRSELES

v
Trademark Licenses and permits Total
[E1E HIRREFE st
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT HIT BT
Tianda Pharmaceuticals KREE(IRE)
(Zhuhai) - - 66,370,893 77,629,729 66,370,893 77,629,729
Tianda Pharmaceuticals RABEE(BARE)
(Australia) 5,557,503 6,616,786 1,111,128 1,914,760 6,668,631 8,531,546
5,557,503 6,616,786 67,482,021 79,544 489 73,039,524 86,161,275

Particulars regarding impairment testing on intangible assets as

at 31 March 2015 and 2014 are disclosed in note 33.

Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) has obtained medicine
production licenses and permits that used to manufacture and sell
the medicine and drugs. The licenses and permits are granted by
Guangdong Food and Medicine Supervision and Administration
Bureau and subject to renewal every 5 years without significant cost.
Amortisation is provided to write off the cost of the licenses and
permits using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of
the licenses and permits of 8 years.

Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia) has obtained permits that
used to manufacture and sell the healthcare products. The permits are
granted by Therapeutic Goods Administration, Australia and subject to
renewal every year without significant cost. Amortisation is provided
to write off the cost of permits using the straight line method over the
estimated useful life of permits of 5 years.

The trademark included several brand names held by Tianda
Pharmaceuticals (Australia) which allow the Group to produce
products under those brand names. The trademark is treated as
having indefinite useful life because it is expected to contribute to net
cash inflows to the Group indefinitely. Therefore, it is not amortised
until its useful life is determined to be finite.

BER_F-—hER_F—MNF
ZR=t—HZEFEERENHZ
EER )N EE XRS5

RAAEE (KB ) CBUSARRIE
NEERY N Bm 2 BmEEANRR
ArEJiE. BN EHERE B mi
mEEEERME, R FEN,
BIRSATRERE M, BHEETII RN

NATEZ AT ERFE/N\ER
EFRBESIEMHE NIRRT E A,

RAAREZ(BRAFE )SEE
REEREERBEERZFIE.
2 o] 3% B8 K I 2 Therapeutic Goods
Administrationitt i, ‘Bz FF4EHE, MED/E
XTRERE R, R EDARTYE
I ERFERRFAFERERE
i EE 3T oT 35 B AN,

EIREIE R KL (AR )FF
Bz ZEmiEEE, EAERYLIZE
MR EREEEEM. ARBEETTE
[REAIb B A EE SRR RNFER, &
WIRBEEERUERFN. B, IR
FEEHTERFRER, DRIBER
=T LU
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18. INVENTORIES 18. &
2015 2014
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Raw materials Rkt 14,583,718 13,440,509
Work in progress ER& 9,063,967 3,918,775
Finished goods Rk 14,936,343 11,452,499
38,584,028 28,811,783

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER 19.

FEWTERTR N WL =R R L B WGX

RECEIVABLES
2015 2014
HK$ HK$
7T BT
Trade and bills receivables FEURBRFR N FEW 245 47,562,508 36,863,437
Prepayments to suppliers At FE R TR (T FRIE 509,273 2,001,474
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HeRWE & MTETFRIE 7,202,349 5,723,790
55,274,130 44,588,701

The Group allows average credit periods ranging from 60 to
180 days to its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis
of trade and bills receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting

REELS TN FOE180RAELZ
FHOEEHMTHEZER. UTAIRE
ZZ 0 HFT 25 BRI R B RIE
( CHPRRIRE® R IRSIARZIRE

period: paX i
2015 2014
HK$ HK$
T BT
Within 60 days ZNL 19,670,279 15,792,066
61-90 days 61Z290K 7,463,637 3,956,488
Over 90 days HBIE0K 20,428,592 17,114,883
47,562,508 36,863,437

Included in the carrying value of trade and bills receivables
as at 31 March 2015 is bills receivables of HK$33,768,397 (2014:
HK$23,873,948).

RIE—RE=A=+—H, &
AR R B E B IREEEIE A
33,768,397 ;o IEW ZE R ( —F—1Y
. 23873,94887T ).
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19.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits of each
customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed once a year. All
of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have
good credit quality assessed by the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables balance are
debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$3,457,995 (2014:
HK$3,389,634) which are past due as at the reporting date for which
the Group has not provided for impairment loss as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and amounts are still considered
recoverable based on historical experience.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
The average age of these receivables is as follows:

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

19. BRI B RIER HEBIGR

(4&)

RENTOUHZEFE, 25ES
PIBES F ZEEFRE TS, 57
EBUEFZEERE EFUZEZR
BEEFRE X FIERBHBTIRIR
BZEBEEERRYEREEFERESE
RIFfEET4k

REBZ EWEER N BN B 45
BEEIRMEES 34579958 t( —F
—[O&. 3,389,634i8 7T )AL RIRE HER
CEHiZ FEWEEIE, AR EEBEE
BEAEHEEARIBRIBBELED
BIR AT E], R, AEBLEZ
ERIE(E L R BRI .

AEBUWEMZEEHRITEITE
I F. ZFRWEERZ FIBRE 10
.

EEAERRE EIK AR Z BREe

2015 2014

HK$ HK$

T BT

61 -90 days 61290K 1,532,768 713,922
Over 90 days HBIE0X 1,925,227 2,675,712
3,457,995 3,389,634

The Group’s trade and bills receivables and other receivables
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
respective group entities are set out below:

AEEUSEBERZINEER
LIS 2 B FEZ EWBRT R BN E
BRAEEEBEEREZINT:

2015 2014

HK$ HK$

BT BT

HK$ BT 270,264 80,283
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20.

21.

BANK DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES AND CASH 20. SRITEF RITEHRNIEE

The bank deposits, which comprise short-term fixed deposits IRITER(BERIHEHE—=
with original maturity of 1 to 3 months (2014: 7 days to 3 months), “ER(ZE—NHF tXE=@ERH)
carry market interest rates ranging from 0.26% to 3.43% (2014 ZHEBERER)IRMEENENTF
0.26% to 3.20%) per annum. 0.26%=E3.43%( ZF—[MF, 0.26%=

3.20% )5t S

Bank balances carry variable interest at market rates which IRITEBRIZNF0.01%Z=0.35% ( —

range from 0.01% to 0.35% (2014: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum. F—ME: 0.01%=E0.35% )Z H 15 FE)
FRERFFE,

The Group’s bank deposits, bank balances and cash that are AEBUSEEBEZIIRET
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the LISh 2 EFEZ IRITIE. IR1T4EER
respective group entities are set out below: RIBEEHIMT:

2015 2014

HK$ HK$

AT BT

HKS BT 9,234,213 18,864,601

US$ ESYI 676 16,180,259

EUR EXTT 8,075 8,143
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. FEJIRFNRECEMNR

2015 2014

HK$ HK$

T BT

Trade payables FEFTERFR 19,904,712 14,246,389

Deposits received from customers BEFNZIEE 12,739,631 11,863,159

Value added tax payables FEfTIZER 2,129,939 2,042,657

Other payables and accrued staff costs HeBOMEERTE T4 47,980,688 34,488,944

82,754,970 62,641,149
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21.  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 2. BOEFNRECEMK @)

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 60 to 90 BEFIIEEHEN F0XEN
days. The aging analysis of trade payables presented is based on Ko MIBEHR, AEEDRBESR
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period. The following is HZ2 S ETERFEREE Z Difr. AT AR
an analysis of the Group’s trade payables at the end of the reporting SEZEIRANBESEHRZ D
period:

2015 2014

HK$ HK$

T BT

Within 60 days 60K A 7,688,100 6,984,691
61-90 days 61290K% 3,192,095 1,372,904
Over 90 days TN EL PN 9,024,517 5,888,794
19,904,712 14,246,389

Included in the trade payables at 31 March 2015, RIE—AF=B=+—HZ
HK$8,508,436 (2014: HK$6,858,885) has been paid by endorsed bills FE{TBREFN A, 8,508,436/ 5( —F—1
for which the maturity date has not yet fallen due as at 31 March 2015 . 6858885870 ) ALARZE—HREF
(see note 28). =B=+—H=RIBPzEEEET

( RFFEE28).

22. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 22. BUFFEED

HK$
B IT
At 1 April 2013 RIE—=FNBE—H 1,297,436
Exchange realignment RS 1,168
Credited to profit or loss FTAEE (1,090,070)

At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 RIE—NFE=F=+—H
—F—MFEMA—H 208,534
Exchange realignment fE e % 1,393
Additions A0 1,260,398
Credited to profit or loss FTAER (261,682)

At 31 March 2015 R_F—RE=A=+—H 1,208,643
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22.

23.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS (continued)

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

22. BUFMEN(®E)

FIRE ML Z DT

2015 2014

HK$ HK$

T BT

Current liabilities* mEaE 126,119 208,534
Non-current liabilities ERFEE 1,082,524 -
1,208,643 208,534

* The carrying amount of the government grants which is expected to be

*

released to profit or loss in the next twelve months is classified as current.

Note:

Grants were designated for the cost of acquisition of certain plant and equipment
for the production of pharmaceutical and biotechnology products and were deferred
and are released to income on a straight-line basis over the expected useful lives of

the related assets.

bEES

TR+ B B N NIBE 2 BT
BB EREEE S ESREIEE.

M DEERARBALESEEMERMN
wETHERRBZAE, WEEERRE
B ETRH O A FIIHRE R AN,

SHARE CAPITAL 3. BEA
Number
of shares Amount
dnr =] ®8R
HK$
BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each ERIREE00B T E1EAR
Authorised: A TE:
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014 and R-_E—=EmBE—A.
31 March 2015 “FE—MNE=B=+—H
ER_FE—HRF=H=1+—H 4,000,000,000 400,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRAE:
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014 and R-_E—=EmBE—A.
31 March 2015 “E—NE=A=+—H
E_EFE—HRF=H=1+—H 1,870,118,160 187,011,816
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24. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 24, EERIEEIE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised AREERDAFEERDZ TZIE
and movements thereon during the current and prior years: IERIEEENREHEFHUT.
Fair value Withholding
adjustment tax on
of property, Prepaid distributable
plant and lease Intangible profit of
equipment payments assets subsidiaries Total
WX, WEAE
BB REEZ fafs At iREA
AREERE HEME Bl EE Z TR E
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 April 2013 RZE—=FNA—H 4,185,721 15,159,370 25,168,912 1414157 45,928,160
Exchange realignment 3R 450 1,625 (320,612) - (318,537)
(Credit) charge to profitor loss  7EIB& A ( ZF N )1k (142,740) (516,957) (3,002,255) 3,287,751 (374,201)
At 31 March 2014 and RIF—MEF
1 April 2014 ZR=1t—HK
“F-MEME—H 4,043 431 14,644,038 21,846,045 4,701,908 45,235,422
Exchange realignment SRS 14,698 53,233 (315,267) - (247,336)
Credit to profit or loss EEEATA (142,721) (516,892) (2,994,626) (717,880) (4,372,119)
At 31 March 2015 N_E—HE
=B=+—H 3,915,408 14,180,379 18,536,152 3,984,028 40,615,967

The Group’s subsidiaries that are tax resident in the PRC are
subject to the PRC dividend withholding tax of 10% for those non-
PRC resident immediate holding company registered in the British
Virgin Islands, when and if undistributed earnings are declared to be
paid as dividends out of profits that arose on or after 1 January 2008.
Accordingly, a provision for deferred taxation in respect of withholding
tax on undistributed earnings of approximately HK$38,344,000 (2014:
HK$45,523,000) has been recognised for the year ended 31 March
2015.

At 31 March 2015, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$263,404,000 (2014: HK$230,297,000) available to
offset against future profits. Included in unrecognised tax losses are
losses of approximately HK$10,022,000 (2014: nil) would be expired
in 2019. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the unused tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

ATEEHATDZAEERBEA
TNERN B AR IFE
FHEERIRATEIRREDIREHN AR
B, mERKkEIE _EF/\F—HF—
Rz BEE ZEH PR, BI/BTEH
10%2 P EI AR EFE TR, H ik, REZE
TE-RFE=ZRA=t+—HILEFECH
RO IREF) 2 T8 5 HE 72 £938,344,000
BIo( ZF—U4F. 45,523,000 7T )2
TEIEFR IS B 15,

R_FE—RF=F=+—8H, &
EE T ARIKERK G 2 REER
TEE5 1840 4263,404,00058 75( —F—M
. 230,297,000/8 7T ). AEDIRIEEIE
th 15 #910,022,00078 7o ( — F— M0 .
| OBR _E—NFRE. Heliag
HIRHRAEEE, R BELITERIAR I EFE
3, BT BRI BRIE I EDIRLE
MRIBEEE,
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25.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group’s Hong Kong subsidiaries operate a Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the MPF Scheme) for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contribution are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the MPF Scheme up to a maximum contribution of
HK$1,500 (HK$1,250 before June 2014) per employee monthly, which
contribution is matched by the employee.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$234,343 (2014:
HK$179,099) represents contributions paid to the MPF Scheme by the
Group in respect of the current year.

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members
of state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions. For
the year ended 31 March 2015, the total cost charged to profit or
loss of HK$2,994,530 (2014: HK$2,987,549) represents contributions
paid to the state-managed retirement benefit scheme by the Group in
respect of the current year.

25.

BIRERETE

rEBZEBHWEASRESGE
w2 EBHMEAESRAENEE( 8
Bertdl ) zRERIBESFTE, Hf
HIZEEEARFEZRE—BDLLEL,
WERBRE ST S RAEMTIFE
1B R,

mEErtEcEERAERCE
EDRFE, THEIEEESEE.
REBZBREMRRRAMS FRIESFT
geRES. AEERRETETEIE
LEBFMERZSWULR, UEESR
B #5k1,500E 7T ( R ZF—UFEXAHR)
1250870 )R LIR, HEEEZMRE

o

RIS A 1 Bk & 48 5 A234,34378
7o( ZE—[U4F. 179,009 70 )IE A &
B AN EE OB S 5T ET 2 HR.

AEEBZHEBLASEIZEES
FERFE R AREEEBARER
Bz B, ZEMWE AT B HE M
AZSEEE D EEEAREHETEIES
R, BEFIEMRES, AEEMIEK
EAGtEIZE—STAERIEEZH
F BECE—ARAF=R=+—HItHF
[, IRIBa NIk 48 B 42,994 53078
T7o( ZF U5, 2,987 5498 70 I AEE
B AFEOBREBEAEREE]
BT Z AR
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26.

27.

OPERATING LEASE 26. &REHHY
The Group as lessee KREBIEREEA

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases in FARBLSEHOMPEAEZYE
respect of office premises during the year amounted to HK$4,610,246 X2 = {ETEEFIE &4,610,24618 7T

(2014: HK$4,895,152),

( ZFE—Y4. 4,895,152 7T ).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments RI|EER, AEBHRATTHE
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating ZREBLYBI 2 RRR(EHAER

leases which fall due as follows:

IEEREZZIEBE T

2015 2014

HK$ HK$

7T BT

Within one year —&EMR 3,574,560 3,609,154

In the second to fifth year inclusive

MEELFAN( BEEEMSE) 6,303,525 -

9,878,085 3,609,154

Operating leases are negotiated for an average term of 3 years KEROKIEREREFHIFEHS

and rentals are fixed over the relevant lease term.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

3%, MHEREREBANNEEES
géi\o

21. BAEIE

Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition of

property, plant and equipment contracted
for but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements

Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition of

land use right authorised but not contracted for

2015 2014
HK$ HK$
BT BT
METHEBRRESE
LUEGESES Y AL YE N
TR R skt 2 EARRIZ

972,475 13,407,024

o EREE B R WS
TihfEREZEARIX 40,417,608 -
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28.

29.

TRANSFER OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 28. EREESREE
As at 31 March 2015, the Group has bills receivables of RIEBE—HRE=H=+—H, &
HK$8,508,436 (2014: HK$6,858,885) that were transferred to SEIEemEREESBEERKNER
suppliers by endorsing those receivables on a full recourse basis. % T fER < B R 1% 438,508,436
As the Group has not transferred the significant risks and rewards B ZF—0E. 6,858,885/8 7T ). H
relating to these receivables, it continues to recognise the full carrying RAEE I Mg R ZE R NRIES
amount of the trade receivables and trade payables. These financial B EXERKDIHR, MEEETERE
assets are carried at amortised cost in the Group’s consolidated SOMEWBRFA N FE(TBRFR 2 BREE, %5
statement of financial position. SREERBERANAERB 55
BRI R TR,
Bills receivables
endorsed to
suppliers with
full recourse
mtEREEIIE
SHEREZ BIER
2015 2014
HK$ HK$
T BT
Carrying amount of bills receivables fEWN IR 2 BREE 8,508,436 6,858,885
Carrying amount of trade payables FEFTBRFR Z BREE (8,508,436) (6,858,885)
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 29. BERRtEETE

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme (the Scheme)
adopted on 13 July 2010 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees, the directors and
employees of the Company may, at the discretion of the Company’s
directors, be granted options (the Options) to subscribe for shares in
the Company (the Shares) at a price determined by its directors, but
shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of a Share as
stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

REBEAATR-FE—FFLA
T=HIRMZ BREREI( ZEtE),
ZrtElZ TEEMBRESNREERRE
BRMER, ARTIEFTNBEEL
SESENEERTERE(BRE),
LIZARDEFEEZBERBBELAR
S5 ( ZFRY ), BLRBEERT
SRR ()az B RIZ H H BAE B 52 P 3%
HZEBRKRERMRIWHE; (i)%F
ROREEFT BRI AEEEE R
PR B HRERARZ FY
W& R (izBrt iRIEEH Bz EE
=EZESE,
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29.

30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Without prior approval from the Company's shareholders, the
total number of shares in respect of which Options may be granted
under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, and the number of shares in
respect of which Options may be granted to any individual in any one
year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years
from the date of its adoption. Options granted must be taken up not
later than 30 days after the date of grant. A consideration of HK$1 is
payable on acceptance of the offer of grant of an Option. An Option
is exercisable on the date when the offer for the grant of Options is
made but shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date
of grant of the Options.

No Options have been granted since the adoption of the
Scheme.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(@  Amount due to a related company

29.

30.

BiRETE(®)

REXRBRREFLMAE, RIE
ZETEITT IR Z BBIRERT P R Z IR0
BEAEFEBRARAINTARESHE
1T Z210%, MREN—FERT G
R A TR L Z BIREMS R Z I
#H, NMSBRAATREAECE
TR Z1%.

ZETEIBRMBEBRE+FERNE
WMo PR BRIV AR H H AR
ORAER. EHWNEHBIRERRITA
BB TERNE. BREYRES
REBRERBRTE ERETURRT
ARBRERLBIPETFRTE

BERMNEZET BILLZR, WARR BT
O BB AR,
BAiEALIRE

(a) FEf—FEERELTIFKIA

2015 2014

HK$ HK$

T B IT

Trade balances B &E% 1,355,935 1,463,087

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s amount due to a
related company, which is a fellow subsidiary of the Company,
is trading in nature, arising from purchase of packaging
materials for pharmaceuticals and biotechnological products.
The whole amount as at 31 March 2015 and 2014 are aged
within 90 days. The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing
and with credit term within 90 days.

RIFE-—AF=B=+—
B AEBEZEMI—HREEAT
( BARBIZERMBAT )KIA
EEZME TERBESRELY
EmRZBEVHMEEL. R-F
—hFER"FE-MF=R=1+—
B, BERIEZIREBIOKRA, %
IR 2 EIR REH R R M0
KZIEEH,
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30.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

(c)

During the year, the Group entered into the following
transactions with related companies:

b) AEERAFENEBELTE

Name of related company

BREATERE

Zhuhai S.E.Z. Cheng Cheng Printing

Co. Ltd. (Cheng Cheng)

RBEEERAKRINFZEEIRAT

( &Rk )

Cheng Cheng Printing (Hong Kong) Limited

BN T35 :
Nature of transactions 2015 2014
RHME HK$ HK$
BT BT
Purchases 4,284,342 2,932,241
BE

Sale of plant and equipment

25,000 -

HALENTS( &8 )BRA D HEmMRENEE

Tianda Group (Australia) Pty. Ltd. Management fee income - 578,928
HIEEWAN

Notes: B 5T

()  The amount represents purchases of packaging and printing (i) ZEREIE AL ( A2 \TZH,‘?

products from Cheng Cheng, a fellow subsidiary of the Company.

(i) The amount represents sale of motor vehicle with a carrying value (i)
of approximately HK$18,000 to Cheng Cheng Printing (Hong Kong)
Limited, a fellow subsidiary of the Company, at a consideration of

HK$25,000.

(i)~ The amount represented management fee income from Tianda (iii)
Group (Australia) Pty. Ltd., a fellow subsidiary of the Company.

Compensation of key management personnel

WEAE )EE R ER.

ZE BRI U 1%25,0005%7_1:@%)52
BRENTE( T VBRRAE (AR
ZRRMBEAE )ﬁ’iﬁﬁﬁﬁ’]
18,000/8 TTZ 9 EE,

Z e IgEk BTianda Group
(Australia) Pty. Ltd.( AA T Z @&
WEAS) ) ZEERERA.

() FESEAEMS

The remunerations of Directors and other members of EENHECFEEBAER

key management during the year are as follows: FAZ BT,
2015 2014
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Short-term benefits EHAE R 3,940,585 3,914,846
Post-employment benefits BIREF] 17,500 15,000
3,958,085 3,929,846

The remunerations of key management, including

Directors, were determined by reference to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

Eh Ao

5518 fEo

FEEBEAS(BREES)
ZHEHMI5Z2 REAREBERHIHE
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31.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY M. AT BRRE
2015 2014
HK$ HK$
BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Plant and equipment BN 2,089,246 2,489,300
Investments in subsidiaries RTBATZIRE 245,673,095 230,079,545
247,762,341 232,568,845
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Deposits and other receivables RENECEIR 1,568,123 2,201,150
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEW T BB T FRIE 187,404,091 179,968,167
Bank deposits RITEM 225,818,701 252,216,102
Bank balances and cash IRITEBRNRES 8,172,664 4,143,290
422,963,579 438,528,709
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Other payables = DEN 3,563,609 3,220,862
Amount due to a subsidiary fEfT—REM B ABIFRIE 11,691,599 11,741,599
15,255,208 14,962,461
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 407,708,371 423,566,248
NET ASSETS EEFE 655,470,712 656,135,093
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARREE
Share capital B% 187,011,816 187,011,816
Reserves (Note) s (FIEE) 468,458,896 469,123,277
TOTAL EQUITY WELSHRER 655,470,712 656,135,093
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31.

32.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 3. RARBZUBIRRE @)
(continued)
Note: B 5.
Capital Capital
Share redemption contribution Exchange Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
BhiaE  EXEDGE  EAUTEE ER PGyt st
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
B B B B B B
At 1 April 2013 RZE—Z&MB—-AH 257,839,900 8,000 105,239,603 - 121,221,093 484,308,596
Loss for the year AEERE - - - - (7,247,692) (7,247,692)
Exchange difierence arising on translation B EEE 2 BEREE - - - (270,142) - (210,442)
Total comprehensive expense for the year  AFE L E S 458 - - - (270,142) (7.247692) (7517.834)
Dividend recognised as distribution RO REBEAZBE - - - - (7,667,484) (7,667,484)
At 31 March 2014 RIF—ME=B=1—H 257,839,900 8,000 105,239,603 (270,142) 106,305,917 469,123,218
Proft for the year KEEHF - - - - 2,956,711 2,956,711
Exchange difference arising on translation B EEE 7 BER £ - - - 867,191 - 867,191
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEE L E N EEE - - - 867,191 2,956,711 3823902
Dividend recognised as distribution RO REBEDZBE - - - - (4,488,284) (4,488,284)
At 31 March 2015 RZE-hF=A=+-H 257,839,900 8,000 105,239,603 597,049 104,774,344 468,458,896
PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 2. EEWBATZFIE

A.  Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31
March 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

A

ARBEEMBEATR _F—H
FR_F-—MNF=HA=+—HZ

FIBUWT:
Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary Proportion of nominal value of issued  Proportion of voting
registration and share capitall ordinary share capitallregistered capital ~ power held by the
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Company Principal activities
BEIK
Akl HEEERA AREFERTEERA AREIRTH
WELRERE REEE HMER AfE/ B AL L TEER
Directly Indirectly
BE e
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
% % % % % %
Meng Sheng PRC RMB36,000,000 - - 55 55 55 55 Research, development,
Pharmaceutical* manufacture and sales
of pharmaceutical and
biotechnology products
B I AR# BELYERZH
36,000,0007C %, FE 2
RIEE
Yunyu Bio-Pharmaceutical  British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 100 - - 100 100 Investment holding
Company Limited PRC/Hong Kong
RBEEARES/ Ep RERR

FEEE
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32.  PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) R FEMEBATZF#E (@)
A.  (continued) A (%)
Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary Proportion of nominal value of issued  Proportion of voting
registration and share capitall  ordinary share capitallregistered capital  power held by the
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Company Principal activities
BEITR
Azl SERZERE/ ANBFFEETERRA PN
WBLRRE REZIE AMER HfE/ZEMERL R TEER
Directly Indirectly
B# %
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
% % % % % %
Tianda Pharmaceuticals PRC RMB160,000,000 - - 100 100 100 100 Research, development,
(Zhuhai)* manufacture and sales
of pharmaceutical and
biotechnology products
RREE(%iE )™ i AEH BELMERZ
160,000,0007 . Pk 2is
REE
Tianda Pharmaceuticals Australia AU$1,000,000 - - 100 100 100 100 Marketing, sales and
(Australia) distribution of
healthcare products
KREZ(RARTE)  EARE 1,000,000 75 REERZITHE #H
ERNH
Tianda Pharmaceuticals PRC HK$50,000,000 - - 100 100 100 100 Research and
(China) Ltd development of
pharmaceutical
products and provision
of intra-group
consultation service
KRB ( ) e 50,000,000% 7o BEERZARRE
BIRAE & URIHER
MERRHIRE
* Company incorporated as cooperative joint venture enterprise. * UEFEERERAMIZA
Blo
** Company established as foreign invested limited liability company. ** B ABIEERSELATZA
Blo
The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of EEDAINLEBENBAT
the particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length ZHBESHEREMNBRAR,
and therefore the above list contains only those subsidiaries B, ERAAFESIFEHARE
which principally affect the results or assets and liabilities of the XEYEENBEBREATEY
Group. B &S 2l
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities PR 3R & HA R 3 B R (T B
at the end of the reporting period or at any time during the year. i, BEARM B A ITEAER

2K S

E 970
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32.  PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 32.

B.  Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary that have material
non-controlling interest

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned

subsidiary of the Group that have material non-controlling

FEWBEB AT ZE B (@)

B. HHEAFERERZIFEEN
BABZHE

TRITHEEERIFZRE

mZAEEIFEEWEAT 25+

interest: 15:
Proportion of
Place of ownership interests
incorporation and and voting rights (Loss) profit Accumulated
principal place of held by non- allocated to non- non-controlling
Name of subsidiary business controlling interests controlling interests interests
B aveit HERESSREEE  oREIFR
WBARERE REZEXIE mER LR EEmZ( B )RR SRt RERS
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
% % HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT
Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical PRC 45% 45%  (5,074,317) 26,899,780 59,064,188 63,915,149
BEEE i

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s subsidiary that has material non-controlling interest
is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

BREEEXIFERIESY
FrEEWBABZMBEERNE
HIMT. FXYBFERERE
EE AL HRI < 25,

Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical BriEE
2015 2014
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Current assets mEEE 99,868,528 128,201,675
Non-current assets EREFEE 78,420,649 51,117,907
Total liabilities B &R (47,035,426) (37,285,918)
Net assets BEFE 131,253,751 142,033,664

Equity attributable to owners of

the Company AN TIRRELER 72,189,563 78,118,515
Non-controlling interests JEiEpg iR 59,064,188 63,915,149
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32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 2. EEMBATIZEE(E)
B. Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary that have material B. HEEXIFEREZZIFEEN
non-controlling interest (continued) BABRZFE(E)
Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical (continued) B gEE ()
2015 2014
HK$ HK$
T BT
Revenue TN 16,430,212 141,015,185
Expenses ¥ (27,706,470)  (81,237,896)
(Loss) profit for the year AFE(BIE )@ (11,276,258) 59,777,289
(Loss) profit attributable to owners of ARNBIRERE( BEE)
the Company bl (6,201,941) 32,877,509
(Loss) profit attributable to the =R g ( B8 )
non-controlling interests i ) (5,074,317) 26,899,780
(Loss) profit for the year AREE( BB )af (11,276,258) 59,777,289
Other comprehensive income (expense) AANTIREREELECEE
attributable to owners of the Company e (ZH) 272,989 (231,059)
Other comprehensive income (expense) EERESELECEE
attributable to the non-controlling interests Wa( 2 ) 223,356 (189,048)
Other comprehensive income (expense) AKEEHe2EKWE
for the year (ZH) 496,345 (420,107)
Total comprehensive (expense) income ARBIRREEEE
attributable to owners of the Company (Y =eza (5,928,952) 32,646,450
Total comprehensive (expense) income EEREDELESE
attributable to the non-controlling interests Pl (4,850,961) 26,710,732
Total comprehensive (expense) AFEELE( ZE )WE
income for the year HEkE] (10,779,913) 59,357,182
Net cash (outflow) inflow from KEEHMCRE(RE)
operating activities MANIFER (2,701,153) 75,566,114

Net cash outflows from investing activities

SEIEN RS M FEE (31,261,061) (24,356,931)

Net cash inflow (outflow) from
financing activities

REIEEZIRERA
(iR )iFEE 1,260,398 (62,259,131)

Net cash outflows

RE ML iFEE (32,701,816) (11,049,948)
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33.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

For the purpose of impairment testing, the goodwill
and intangible assets amounting to HK$111,615,489 (2014:
HK$111,618,198) and HK$73,039,524 (2014: HK$86,161,275),
respectively at 31 March 2015 has been allocated to three (2014:
three) CGUs, namely, (1) Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical, (2) Tianda
Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) and (3) Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia).
All of which are engaged in the sales of pharmaceuticals and
biotechnology products and healthcare products.

CGU for Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical

The recoverable amount of the CGU arising from Meng Sheng
Pharmaceutical was determined based on value in use calculations.
The value in use calculations use cash flow projection based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period and a pre-tax discount rate of 12.32% (2014: 12.32%). Cash
flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 3%
growth rate for this CGU. The key assumption is budgeted revenue
and gross margins determined based on past performance and the
management’s expectations for the market development.

No impairment on this CGU is made for both years as the
recoverable amount, which is the value in use, exceeded the
carrying amount (comprising goodwill). The Directors believe that
any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the CGU to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amounts of CGU.

CGU for Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai)

The recoverable amount of the CGU arising from Tianda
Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) was determined based on value in use
calculations. The value in use calculations use cash flow projection
based on financial budget approved by management covering a five-
year period and a pre-tax discount rate of 13.66% (2014: 13.66%).
Cash flow beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady
3% growth rate for the CGU. The key assumption is budgeted
revenue and gross margins determined based on past performance
and the management's expectations for the market development.

33.

£

BNERSE MBS

B

FRERGEMS RZFE—RF
=B=+—H, 116154898 T2
B ZF—[YFE. 111,618,19858 7T ) &
730395248 i EEEE( ZFE—
E 86,161,275:8 75 ) E DB E=E( =
= EE _1@ )EEZ:E}_QE%LL ()E}]?.
dEEE QRKEE(KEBIRQRXK
mE(BRARE ), TEQTINEE

BEYERNREERBEEER.

REBEZIRSEL BN
REBEEXEZREEFEND]
WEeRizEREEBED EEE. £
REEBLEFAZRERETRR
LIEEEMitERED FHE M55
FEERRIREIITIRE1232%( ZF—M
. 1232% )5t8. mReELENURA
FHEZEZRESMEDRAINIIBE
BREEE., TERRRBIZUERRNR
EEEBHMBERZANEEZEE
W BRI,

HRZReEEEMZTREE
BR(MEAEEEBRKREE(BED
), mEFENRERZREESE
Eﬁ‘a’ﬂz%ﬁ@o EFEE TUHRFR

REHIBZ EUSEBEEH AT E
EE@;-E%HZEEE%EEE&E_NQ
[ClEFR4REE,

RREEZ (KB ZREELEEN

RERAEE(KE )ZReEEE
BNIWEEEREREEAES X
EE. EFRBEEFERERAZREER
SEAUEEEMERELFHE
Zﬁjfyzi\#&ﬂ?ﬁﬁufﬁfﬁrm 66%( —

—UE; 13.66% )5tH. ZREELES
1_Lﬁ/\\££EHH B ZIREMEIIRF%
IREBRRER, T2RRBIEUE
ZELEEERSMIEEEZTAEE
ZTEEWANK EFE,
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33.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

CGU for Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) (continued)

No impairment on this CGU is made for both years as the
recoverable amount, which is the value in use, exceeded the
carrying amount (comprising goodwill and intangible assets). The
Directors believe that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the
CGU to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of CGU.

CGU for Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia)

The recoverable amount of the CGU arising from Tianda
Pharmaceuticals (Australia) was determined based on value in use
calculations. The value in use calculations use cash flow projection
based on financial budgets approved by management covering
five-year period and a pre-tax discount rate of 15.67% (2014:
15.67%). Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 3% growth rate for the CGU. The key assumption is
budgeted revenue and gross margins determined based on the past
performance and the management’s expectations for the market
development.

No impairment on this CGU is made for both years as the
recoverable amount, which is the value in use, exceeded the
carrying amount (comprising goodwill and intangible assets). The
Directors believe that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the
CGU to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of CGU.

33.

HEENREREEZRENG(E)

RRBEZE( KB \ZIREEESEN(E)
HRZBESEESE T IREE
E(BEEFERER)BRREE(2ED
ERBEREE) SMEFESREHM
EZE%EQE%M%HE;‘EEE EE1B1E,
HAZERFRUEHIRZEOASEE
Eﬂﬂﬂﬁzfﬁﬁriﬁuzﬁ&ﬁﬁ@ﬁ
BHHET I £ EAREE,

RREEZ(RAR DR ZIREELHEN
XE%?C*“ (R )ZIRE
BuoWbleERERBERE

73 %f—iﬁo EREEHEDERAZR
enERAUESEEMtERELF
HIE 2 M FRE N RIS AT IR 15.67%
( ZE—UF: 1567% )tE, ZIREE
EEBEVROFHERZBERENR
A% REEREHEE. TERRDIE
DERBEREEEBHHIBERZFAE

R =

BEZIAERAREF =,

HRZBESEESL T IREE
E(BEEFERER)BRREE(B2ED
ERBEREE) SMEFESREHM
EZE%EQE%M%HE;‘EEE EE181E,
HAZERFRUEHIRZEOASEE
Eﬂﬂﬂﬁzfﬁﬁriﬁuzﬁ&ﬁﬁ@ﬁ
BHET I £ EREE,
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34.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 5 May
2015, Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) acquired the land use right
of a piece of land in Zhuhai City, Guangdong Province, the PRC,
successfully and signed the sale confirmation on 5 May 2015. Tianda
Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) entered into the sale and purchase contract
on 15 May 2015. Based on the amount of RMB336 (equivalent
to approximately HK$420) per sq.m., the total consideration for
the land use right is RMB32,334,086 (equivalent to approximately
HK$40,417,608), which will be paid by the Group's internal resources.
The Group intends to establish new facilities on the land, which will
be used for research, production and sales for the pharmaceutical,
biotechnology and healthcare business of the Group. The acquisition
has been completed as the date of issuance of consolidated financial
statements.

34.

HwREHREIR

REANTHEBA-_E—AFH
BRHZAE, RABEZ( ESE, )BT
WEPEERE®RETH—IELibz -
tERE TR _SE—AERBHREHA

HE (MXHERDE) . RREE(LKE)
m:f—£$£ﬁ+£EMu«ﬁ%
BE). THERBERERESY
75K A R #33670( HHE R 494208 7T )
BEE, 2 ANRE32,334,08670( fHERL
40,417,608/ 7T ), WAFLAARSEE 2 NED
BIRES (T, ANEBBREZ I DEEFR
iE, Wi ARAEBESEEYNIRE
EmERIHE FENREE. RiES
MREETEER, W%%EEM*
o
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